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of 10:00 a.m on the 25th day of June, A. D., 2020.

U S. LEGAL SUPPCORT
www. usl egal support. com



http://www.uslegalsupport.com

© 00 N o o b~ w NP

[EEN
o

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Hans Mast
June 25, 2020

STATE OF I LLINO S )
) SS
COUNTY OF MCHENRY )

IN THE C RCU T COURT OF THE 22ND JUDI CI AL CI RCU T
MCHENRY COUNTY, |LLINO S

PAUL DULBERG, )
Pl ai ntiff, g

-VS- g No. 17 LA 377
THE LAW OFFI CES OF THOVAS ))
POPOVI CH and HANS MAST, )
Def endant s. §

The renote vi deoconference deposition of
HANS MAST, appearing renotely from McHenry County,
I[1linois, called by the Plaintiff for exam nation,
pursuant to subpoena and pursuant to the Code of
Cvil Procedure of the State of Illinois, and the
Rul es of the Suprene Court thereof, pertaining to the
t aki ng of depositions, for the purpose of discovery,
t aken before Barbara G Smith, appearing renotely
fromWIIl County, Illinois, Certified Shorthand
Reporter and Notary Public within and for the County
of Cook and State of Illinois, comencing at the hour

of 10:00 a.m on the 25th day of June, A D., 2020.

U S. LEGAL SUPPORT
www. usl egal support.com



http://www.uslegalsupport.com

© 00 N o o b~ w NP

[EEN
o

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Hans Mast
June 25, 2020

REMOTE APPEARANCES:

THE CLI NTON LAW FI RM By

M5. JULIA C WLLIAM

111 West Washington Street, Suite 1437
Chicago, Illinois 60602

(312) 357-1515

(312) 201-0737 (Facsimle)

juliaw | i anms@l i nt onl aw. net

On behal f of the Plaintiff;

KARBAL COHEN ECONOMOU SI LK DUNNE, LLC, By
MR, GEORGE FLYNN

150 Sout h Wacker Drive, Suite 1700
Chicago, Illinois 60606

(312) 431-3622

(312) 431-3670 (Facsimle)

gf  ynn@xar bal | aw. com

On behal f of the Defendants.

ALSO PRESENT: M. Paul Dul berg

U S. LEGAL SUPPORT
www. usl egal support.com



http://www.uslegalsupport.com

© 00 N o o b~ w NP

[EEN
o

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Hans Mast
June 25, 2020

W TNESS

I NDEX

EXAM NATI ON

HANS MAST

By

By

Ms. WIIians 5

M. Flynn 76

EXHI BI TS

HANS MAST

DEPCSI T

66686556565685858568

ON EXH BI' T MARKED FOR | D

16
17
18
26
28
32
35
36
40
46
48
49
53
55
64

RPRRRRE
ORWNROOONOUNAWNER

(Al exhibits provided electronically
to the reporter.)

U S. LEGAL SUPPORT
www. usl egal support.com



http://www.uslegalsupport.com

© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N B O © 0 N O O N~ W N LB O

Hans Mast
June 25, 2020

THE REPORTER: The attorneys participating
in this deposition acknowl edge that | am not
physically present in the deposition roomand that |
W ll be reporting this deposition renotely. They
further acknow edge that, in lieu of an oath
adm ni stered in person, the witness will verbally
declare his testinmony in this matter is under penalty
of perjury. The parties and their counsel consent to
this arrangenent and wai ve any objections to this
manner of reporting. Please indicate your agreenent
by stating your nane and your agreenent on the
record.

M5. WLLIAMS: Julia WIllianms. | agree.

MR. FLYNN. George Flynn. | agree.

THE REPORTER. WI Il the witness kindly
present his governnent-issued identification by
holding it up to the canera for verification?

(Wtness presents
government -i ssued identification
and identity is verified.)

THE REPORTER: Thank you.

HANS MAST,
called as a witness herein, having been first duly

sworn, was exan ned and testified as foll ows:
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EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. W LLI AMS:
M5. WLLIAMS: Ckay, so this is the

di scovery deposition of Hans Mast taken pursuant to
all applicable rules and notice in the case of
Dul berg versus The Law O fices of Thomas Popovi ch,
et al. This deposition is being taken for the
pur poses of discovery.

Q Hans, can you state your nane for the
record, please?

A Hans Mast .

Have you had your deposition taken before?

A Yes.
Q And how many tines?
A | think two.
Q And for what purpose?
A Long, long tinme ago | think there was a
mal practice case | was a wtness on and a legal -- a

medi cal mal practice case that turned into a | ega
mal practi ce case, not agai nst nme but against the
office I was wth.

Q kay. So you weren't naned in the
| awsuit as a defendant?

A | m ght have been naned. | m ght have been
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nanmed, but |
| think I got out eventually.
Q Ckay, and then --
then you said you think twice, so do
approxi mately what year that nedical
that turned into a | egal mal practice
know roughly what year that was?

A '94 or sonet hing.

Q kay,

have t hat been?

And then --

was sonebody that appeared on a notion.

Sorry. And
you know
mal practi ce case

case, do you

and then the second tinme, what woul d

A It's not comng to ne. It was another |ega
case. | don't renenber the details.

Q Ckay - -

A There -- Go ahead.

Q More than 10 years?
mean to interrupt you
A Yes.

Q We can go over the --

" msorry, |

didn't

I"mgoing to try not

to interrupt you,

you're going to try not to

i nterrupt ne.

sure we can get
answering orall
apply, and 111

Have you ever -

You' ve taken depositions before, |I'm
into that and appreciate you
y, all of those typical things that

try not to interrupt you too nuch.

- O her than the one tine you just
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identified, have you ever been sued other than this
suit for |egal mal practice?

A No.

Q Do you recall any other details about that
nmedi cal mal practice lawsuit that turned into a |egal
mal practice suit? Do you know what the basis of the
suit was?

A It was a nedi cal mal practice case that |
think lost on a summary judgnent notion and they
were -- the client was suing the office and | think |
got involved in it because | was on a notion.

Q Were you the one that drafted the summary
j udgnent notion?

A | don't think so. | don't really renenber
clearly back then, but | don't think I did.

Q Ckay.

A | think | argued -- | mght have argued it.
| don't renenber.

Q kay. Have you -- Have you taken
deposi tions before?

A Yes.

Q Roughl y how many depositions do you think
you' ve taken in your |egal career?

A Lot s. Lot s.
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Q Hundr eds?

A Pr obabl y.

Q Ch, I"'msorry, | forgot to do this, but |
thi nk we saw your room It's just you and Ceorge
Flynn in the roomw th you, correct?

A Yes.

Q And there's no one else in the roomand if
there were, you would identify them correct?

A Yes.

Q And you don't have any devices or anything
with you? You're not communicating wi th anyone
during this deposition other than the attorney in the
roomwth you, correct?

A And you and who else is on this neeting.

Q Ckay. |'msorry, let me rephrase. |Is there
anyone that | don't know that you are commrunicating
with that | wouldn't know?

A Not that |I'm aware of.

Q Okay. |If you take any notes or otherw se
communi cate with people during the deposition, we
just ask that those notes be produced. GCkay. Dd
you do anything to prepare for the deposition today?

A Wll, | just saw sonme exhibits you sent

George. | didn't really prepare them | |ooked them
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over briefly.

Q

Did you review any of the other files that

have been produced in this case?

> o >» O » O >» O >

Q
assum ng.
neet i ng,

A
Q

No.
Did you revi ew any notes?
No.
Any ot her docunents?
No.
Did you neet with anyone --
O her than George?
-- to prepare? Oher than George.
No.
And you did neet with George, |'m
| don't want to know the contents of that
but you net with George to prepare?
Not very | ong.

Ckay. D d you talk to anyone el se about

today's deposition prior to the deposition today?

A

o >» O > O

No.

Where did you go to | aw school ?
Kent .

And what year did you graduate?
'91.

And were you admtted to practice in
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II'linois that sane year?

A Yes.

Q And have you -- Are you admtted to practice
anywhere el se?

A No.

Q Have you ever been reprimanded or
di sci plined by any courts?

A No.

Q Have you ever been publicly reprinmnded or
di sci plined by any oversi ght body, such as the ARDC?

A No.

When did you start practicing?

A ' 01.

Q And where did you start?

A I n Rockf ord.

Q Wth a firn?

A. Yeah, Cacci atore.

Q And how | ong were you there?

A About a year and a half.

Q And what kind of work did you do there?

A Personal injury, plaintiff.

Q Have you done personal injury your entire
career?

A No, | did sone defense work.
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Q

kay. So you were at Cacciatore for a year

and a half and you were doing plaintiff's personal

injury work. What did you do after that?

A

I went to the Loggans firmin Chicago for

about 6 nont hs.

you

O

o » O >» O > O >

And what did you do there?
Plaintiff's.

Pl again, personal injury?
Yeah.

And after that?

Judge and Janes in Park Ri dge.
And how | ong were you there?
7 years, | think.

Did you do plaintiff's personal injury there

No, that was defense.

What ki nd of defense work?

Lots -- Al kinds, nunicipal, tort.

Did you defend personal injury cases while
there as wel|?

Yes.

And then after that, where did you go?
Kenmper, | think.

And how | ong were you with Kenper?
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A

| think a couple years. Maybe a little nore

t han t hat.

> O > O

preni ses.

fir

> ® 0 > 0 > 0

And what kind of work did you do at Kenper?
Def ense.
Def ense of what type of cases?

Lots of different kinds, auto accidents,

Mostly torts though, negligence-type cases?
Yes.

And then after Kenper?

| think Popovich was next.

And how | ong were you with the Popovich

About 18 years, | think.

And do you know what year you -- roughly

what year you joi ned Popovich?

A

Q
t hi nk?

> O > O

2001 maybe.

And you were there for roughly 18 years you

Yes.

So you left maybe just |ast year?
In '18.

20187

Yeah.
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Q And why did you | eave Popovich?
A To start on ny own.
Q And where are you now?
A Wth Conpton Law G oup.
Q "Il give you just a second to cone back
A Yeah.
Q And what types of -- I'msorry, I'mgoing to

go back to the Popovich firm Wat kind of cases did
you handl e at Popovich's firnf

A Plaintiff's personal injury, all Kkinds.

Q And then at Conpton, what kind of work do
you do?

A Sane thing, sane kind of cases, plaintiff's
personal injury.

Q Sois it fair to say you' ve been doing
plaintiff's personal injury cases steadily throughout
your career?

A. Yeah, except for the tine | was with the
def ense offices.

Q kay. But you were still doing persona
injury, just on the defense side, not on the
plaintiff side?

A Ri ght.

Q kay. Did you answer discovery in this
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case, in the mal practice case that we're -- the
Dul berg versus Thomas Popovi ch case?

A | think I did.

Q Do you renenber -- Did you review di scovery
in this case, do you recall?

A Like I said, | think | answered sone and
signed off on some, | just don't renenber. | haven't
seen themrecently.

Q Ckay. Okay. |If you recall, do you renenber

review ng the docunents that were produced in this

case?
A | don't know what was produced.
Q Ckay.
A | assune the file.

Q Right. GCkay, if | represented that the file
was produced, would that nake sense to you? Can we
ki nd of agree that the file was produced?

A. Well, if you told ne that.

Q kay. So when the file was produced, |
don't know if you recall, there were black -- sone
bl ack pages between the file. Do you renenber any
di scussi ons about that?

A | didn't produce anything so and | haven't

revi ewed what was produced, that wasn't ny -- | was
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in adifferent office when it was produced, | think.

Q kay. So Thomas Popovi ch woul d have had
possession of the file?

A Ri ght .

Q You di d not have possession of any docunents
fromthe underlying case, fromthe Dul berg versus
Gagnon- McCui re case?

A | didn't.

Q Ckay. So you would not have had access to
that file since you were with Thomas Popovich in
2018?

A Once | left the firm | have not had the
file.

Q Ckay. In this case did you produce enuils
t hat you possessed or did you not have access to
t hose either?

A. Il would -- | don't know what was produced,
again, by the Popovich firm | don't know if they
had ny emails, but | have a new enmai|l address. |
don't think it's the sane as it was back then.

Q Ckay.

A So | didn't produce anyt hing.

Q So you didn't produce any enails or

communi cations that -- in the -- fromthe underlying
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case?
A Not that I'maware of. Unless | produced it
to Popovich and he produced it. | don't know how

t hat wor ked.

Q kay. When were you retained by Pau
Dul ber g?

A | don't recall. 1'massunmng there's
paperwork that shows that.

Q Yes. Let ne upload a file here. Just give
me a second.

A | don't think he retained ne. | think he
retai ned Tom Popovich's office.

Q kay. | just uploaded a file that's titled
Dul berg Mast Dep [Exhibit 1, if you can -- And,

George, you should have that as well -- and it should
be the retai ner contract.

A. Yeah, | see it.

Q (kay. So it's a contract for |egal services
and it's marked POP, P O P, 000586 on the bottom
just for reference, so this will be the first exhibit
in this deposition. Do you recognize this docunent?

A | recognize what it |ooks |ike, yeah.

Q Yeah, and it's the contract for |ega

services and it's undated, it |ooks |ike.
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A That's what it |ooks |ike.

kay. |'mgoing to upload another exhibit.
So |'mupl oading Exhibit 2, it's titled Dul berg Mast
Dep Exhibit 2, and this should be the original
complaint filed in the case of Dul berg versus Gagnon,
et al., 12 LA 178, filed in McHenry County. Do you
see that docunent?

A Yeah. What |'mgoing off are an emmil | got
wth all the exhibits attached, so I'mnot -- that's
what |'m | ooking at.

Q Ckay.

A It's a conplaint and it says [Exhibit 2.

Ri ght, okay. So our nunbers may be a little
of f, but the description should be correct. In that
conpl aint shows file stanp May 15, 20127

A Yeah, that's what it says.

Q Ckay, and so M. Dul berg woul d have hired
you sonetine -- hired the Popovich firm sonetine
prior to that, correct?

A l"massumng. | --

Q kay. Do you have any idea?

A ' msorry.
Q I"'msorry, | didn't nmean to interrupt you
Go ahead.
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A Go ahead.

Q Do you have any idea about -- Do you have
any idea about what tinefrane he would have hired --
retai ned you?

A | really, again, | don't have an i ndependent
recollection of it. | think there's probably a neno
out there of me neeting with him too.

Q kay. Actually, | think there is. ay, |
just upl oaded Dul berg Mast Dep Exhibit No. 3 and the
top says -- it's titled, "Intake Meno." At the top
it says, "Menorandum ™ it's Popovich, it says
POP00961 and 000962. Do you recogni ze this docunent?

A | -- It looks famli ar.

Q And it indicates that it's fromyou, so you
woul d have drafted this docunent, correct?

A | woul d have dictated it, yeah.

Q Ckay, and it |looks |ike you had a new client
neeting wth Paul on Decenber 1st of 20117

A That's what it says.

Q Okay. Does that seemlike that tinmefrane
woul d have been roughly correct?

A | have no reason not to believe that's
accur at e.

Q Ckay. So Paul retained you probably
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sonetinme in Decenber of 2011 and then you filed a
conpl ai nt around May 15, 20127

A That's what it appears.

Q Ckay. So can you just tell nme what the case
against M. -- I'msorry. Can you describe the case
bet ween Paul Dul berg and David Gagnon, Caroline and
WIlliamMCuire?

A What do you nean describe it? Wat it's

about ?
Q Yeah, basically what was it about?
A An injury, a chain saw injury.

Q kay. Was there anything about the case
t hat was uni que to you?
QG her than it was a chain saw injury.
Okay. What was your theory of that case?
What was your theory of liability in the case?
A | think the -- Paul had cl ai mred Dave struck
himw th the chain saw
Q So was it just a negligence theory or was it
a strict liability or --
A | believe it was negligence, if | recall
correct.
Q Negl i gence agai nst Gagnon, David Gagnon?
A Yeah, and | think the McQuires actually were

U S. LEGAL SUPPORT
www. usl egal support.com



http://www.uslegalsupport.com

© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N B O © 0 N O O N~ W N LB O

Hans Mast
June 25, 2020 20

nanmed as wel | .

Q And what was the theory as to the McQuires?

A | think Paul had said that they were the
ones that owned and | ooked over the work that was
bei ng done.

Q kay. So if they owned the chain saw and
were overseeing the work, what's the legal theory for
liability on that? Wy would they be |iable?

A Under case |aw potentially there's liable --
liability for people that oversee and direct the
wor K.

Q kay, and is that a strict liability or is
it some other formof liability?

A It would be negligence.

Q So negligent oversight?

A Potential ly.

Q Ckay. Were there any other theories that
you were going to pursue or could be pursued?

A Not that | recall

Q kay. So a negligence clai magainst Gagnon
for negligently utilizing the chain saw and then a
negl i gence cl aimagai nst McQuires for not -- for not
controlling his use of the chain saw, is that

accur at e?
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A | don't recall the exact allegations, but I
think in a general thene that was what we were goi ng
to try to prove.

Q Ckay. In the intake neno, do you want to go
back to that? There are sonme notes on this exhibit
that state -- it looks to ne like it says, "Hans BC
t he accident occurred on their prem ses, their HO ned
pay will cover the bills,” and then it's signed. Do
you recogni ze that handwiting?

A Yeah, that would be Tom

Q kay, and what does that note nean?

A Medi cal coverage, nedical paynents coverage.

Q So there -- So the McGuires -- Wen he says
their, is he referring to Caroline and Bill MGQuire?

A Wll, | don't know what he's referring to.
| think what he's -- Well, he circled their nanes, so
t hat probably indicates what he's referring to.

Q Ckay. Wuuld their -- Wuld their insurance
cover nedical bills in an instance |ike this?

A Possi bl y.

Q kay. Did you reach out to their insurance
conpany about covering any nedical bills?

A | don't recall if that was applicable or |

don't know -- | don't recall that issue.
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Q Ckay.
A Oh, uh, | think -- It just kicked ne off.
MR. FLYNN: | got disconnected, too. |It's

the W-Fi.
BY MS. W LLI AMS:

Q kay, we'll just wait a minute here.

A | can hear you. | just can't see you.

Q W'll wait a mnute until you can get your

vi deo back on.

MR, FLYNN: Julia, we think the W-Fi may
have dropped here in the office.

M5. WLLIAVMS: Ckay. Well, let's just give
it a mnute and see.

MR FLYNN: Okay.

(Wher eupon, a break was taken,
after which the follow ng
proceedi ngs were had:)

M5. WLLIAMS: Ckay. | think we're back on
the record. Barb, are you doing all right?
THE REPORTER  Yes.
BY MS. W LLI AMS:
Q kay. So we just went through the neno that
Tom nmade a note about insurance and your testinony

was that you don't recall whether you nmade any
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requests to the McQuires' insurance to pay Paul's
medical bills; is that correct?

A. | don't renenber, right.

Q Ckay. Back to the actual clains nmade. Do
you renenber -- Do you recall what the defense was
for first Gagnon and then Bill -- WIIliam and
Caroline McCuire?

A What do you nean by defense?

Q VWhat was their theory of defense in the
case, do you recall? As you understood it.

A | nean, that's a big question. | nean,
they, like every case, they were denyi ng what we were
al | egi ng.

Q Were they denying the facts? D d they
di spute the facts of the case?

A Definitely.

Q Ckay. Do you recall what they were all eging
as far as the facts that were different fromwhat you
were all egi ng?

A | mean, | can probably answer that for --
with an hour -- an hour answer. There's a |lot that
t hey were denying. There was a |ot that, you know, |
mean, |'d have to -- | could look at their answer. |

could |l ook at their deposition testinony, but, |
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mean, that brings up a | ot of issues.

Q kay. Let's -- Let nme narrow it down a
little bit and try to get nore to a point that wl|
be useful for our discussion. At sone point, you had
reconmended that Paul settle the case as to the
McCGuires; is that correct?

A Yeah.

Q And what was the reasoning for settling the

case as to Wlliamand Bill MGCuire?

A Just risk, like you always di scuss with any
settl ement.

Q Can you be a little nore specific about what

type of risk?

A Again, that's a long question but, | nean,
it's like any settlenent, you're taking a risk if you
don't settle the case when you have issues that could
be problematic.

Q Ckay. Wien you say issues that can be
problematic, and | know it could be a very |ong
answer, but as nmuch as you can, can you sunmarize
what you think those risks were?

A Understanding it's a sunmary that, | nean,
coul d probably answer that in a couple hours, but the

chance of recovery was in nmy view very slimif at all
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because of |ots of reasons, one, because of Paul's
testi nony, Gagnon's testinony, the MQiires'

testi nony. The evidence didn't seemto be sonething
that was going to allow us to prove the case agai nst
the McQuires.

Q kay. What -- And, again, | understand this
is -- these are very |long questions, but just in
summary, what were you going to need to prove the
case against the McQuires?

A Now, again, understanding | would have to
put nyself in ny place where | was back at the tine
that | fully evaluated this with Paul, but if I'm
just trying to conme up with sone thoughts now years
| ater the case law, | think, was against us. The
defense was going to file a notion for summary
judgnent if we didn't work out sonme sort of
settlenent that | felt they were going to win and the
testinmony fromall parties was not hel pful to us.

Q Ckay. |'mgoing to nove forward and then we
may cone back to this a little bit. Do you recal
when the first tinme was that you tal ked to Paul about
settling the clains with the McQuires?

A No, whenever -- You know, the defense

attorney woul d have reached out to nme to ask for sone
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sort of demand, | assune.

Q Did you make a denmand at sone point?

A | think -- | think sonme of your paperwork
showed that | did.

Q kay. | just upl oaded Dul berg Mast
Exhibit 4 and it says letter -- it's "Letter Re
Settlenent,"” and that should be -- still be Exhibit 4
that was email ed around to Counsel so that you woul d
have it. And it is |abeled POP192 and POP193. Do
you recogni ze those docunents?

A Wait. | think the Internet, maybe because
we were having problens, is the Internet went down,
so now ny exhibits aren't pulling up. Can you try it
again? Do you have that, George?

MR. FLYNN: Yeah, here's the hard copy.

THE WTNESS: 1'Il ook at the hard copy, so
what are you aski ng?
BY M. WLLI AVE:

Q Geat. So it should be the docunent it has
| etterhead on the top, Popovich |letterhead on the

top, and at the bottomit's POP000192 and

POP000193.
A Ri ght.
Q Do you recogni ze those docunents?
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A | nmean, they look famliar. Docunents from

t he Popovich firm if that's what you're asking.

Q Is that your signature?
A Yes.
Q So you woul d have drafted or caused this

letter to be drafted and sent?
A It appears that way, yeah.
Q And this is a demand letter where you nake a

demand of $7,500; is that correct?

A Yes.
Q Do you recall making that demand?
A No.

Q Do you recall if you talked to Paul prior to
maki ng t he demand?

A ["msure | woul d have.

Q kay. Do you recall -- Do you have any
menos or notes regarding that conversation with Paul ?

A | don't personally.

Q Ckay. |If there were nenos and notes, would
t hey be in Thomas Popovich's file?

A It shoul d.

Q kay. Do you recall any enmils about the
demand -- the 7,500 demand?

A | know there were |lots of enmnils. | don't
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know if this nunber is identified in those emails,
but, again, it would have been sonething I woul d have
tal ked to himabout before making it.

Q Ckay. But at this tinme you don't know if
there are any nenos, notes or emails nenorializing
any conversation with Paul prior to sending the
Cct ober 22, 2013 demand?

A Not that | recall.

Q Ckay, and if they did exist, they would be
in the possession of Thomas Popovich, correct?

A | would think so.

Q kay, and if you had those in your
possessi on, you woul d produce themin discovery,
correct?

A If | had them

Q Okay. Just upl oaded Exhibit 5, and this is
enmai|l dated COctober 30, 2013, and it's marked at the
bot t om POP000195.

A Ckay.

Q kay, and here in this email it |ooks Iike
you started this email chain to Paul on
Cct ober 25, 2013. Do you see that?

A It |ooks like there's a couple enmails here.

There's several pages. You just nmean the first page?
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Q | think -- It should only be, | believe it's
only one page and it | ooks |ike --

A Ch, these aren't part of it? Just one page?

Q The docunent that | have is just one page.

Are we | ooking at the sane thing?

A Ckay.

Q It's POP00195 on the bottom

A Yeah, he had a coupl e other pages on it, but
okay.

Q Ckay. | just want to nmake sure that
didn't -- Okay. And on the bottomthere of the first
sheet, if you have several, |'ve only published one

sheet for the purposes of this deposition, it states,
"Friday, Cctober 25, 2013," do you see that?

A Where does it say that?

Q So about hal fway down the page it | ooks Iike
it says, "Original nessage from Paul "?

A Yeah.

Q OCkay. So that |ooks |ike Paul reached out
to you about nedical deposition and then on the top
it appears to be your reply of QOctober 30, 2013.

Does that seemlike that's accurate?

A That's what it shows.

Ckay. Okay. And here you first -- Am|
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correct in summarizing this is an email where you
talk to Paul about liability for M. Gagnon?

A Look likes | did cover that issue.

Q Ckay, and do you recall at the tinme what
your purpose was behind this enmail ?

A | mean, every purpose is just to have open
comruni cation. That's all the purpose --

Q kay. Would you have been trying to explain
to Paul the liability issues in his case that you
descri bed earlier?

A Yeah, | definitely was discussing several
i ssues for himso he knows what's goi ng on.

Q Ckay, and this email response is dated
Cctober 30th, so that was after you sent that initial
letter. Do you recall whether there would have been
anything prior to this?

A Whet her what was prior to this?

Q Wul d there have been any conmuni cations
about liability either to Gagnon or the McQuires
prior to the October 30, 2013 enmil ?

A Every tinme we tal ked, there were issues
about liability, | nean, for whatever | first -- he
first cane to the office | recall he was lots of

guestions and | gave himlots of answers as is
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reflected in ny emails.

Q kay. Did you neet with Paul after you sent
t hat Cctober 22nd denmand |etter?

A Did I neet with hinP

Q Yes. | n person

A ["msure | did.

Q kay. Do you recall -- Do you recal
neeting -- the dates of those neetings?

A No, | don't recall the dates.

Q Ckay. So I'mgoing to upload another file
her e.

A Yeah, our Internet is down. That's why I
can't bring these up.

Q Ckay.

MR. FLYNN: Julia, just so you know, |'ve
got hard copies of the majority of the exhibits you
sent wwth the exception of the larger files, like the
I nsurance policy and the dep transcripts.

M5. WLLIAMS: Okay. Ckay, great.

MR. FLYNN: [|'ve got some of the deposition
transcripts, but I didn't want to waste a | ot of
paper and ink at hone.

M5. WLLIAVS: Ckay. | think we'll be --

For the nost part, | think we'll be fine and we'l|l
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deal with it if and when we get to that point.

Q kay. So the docunment that |I'm | ooking at
now i s another email on the -- it's nowtitled
Exhibit 6. | don't think it was entitled Exhibit 6
in what | sent to George, but it's an email that the
first date on the email is Novenber 4, 2013, and the
| ast date on the emnil is Novenber 5, 2013 emmi
chain and it's -- at the bottomit's stanped
Dul ber g001531.

A What exhibit is it?

Q | think it mght have been 5-A to Ceorge.
It's now [Exhibit 6 for the purposes of this
deposi ti on.

A Yeah, that wasn't part of the downl oad then.
Do you have --

MR. FLYNN: Yeah, | don't think that was
i ncl uded.

THE W TNESS. What's the Bates stanp or
what's the stanp?

M5. WLLIAVS: The Bates stanp is
Dul ber g001531.

THE W TNESS: Yeah, | don't recall --

MR. FLYNN. | don't recall seeing a 5-A on

the download. | think it just went straight from
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5 to 6.
M5. WLLIAVMS: Ckay, let ne see if | can do
sonething else. I'mgoing to try to share ny screen

| don't knowif I'mgoing to be able to do it. So

bear wwith me. Okay. | can't -- | can't share the
screen. Can | email -- Ceorge, can you pull up an
email if | email it to you?

MR. FLYNN: | should be able to eventually.

M5. WLLIAVS: Ckay, let nme see if that
will --

THE WTNESS: Let nme run to the washroom
real quick while you guys do --

M5. WLLIAVS: W'l take a quick break,
that's fine, we'll try to work this out. |If anybody
el se needs a break, obviously take a break now.

(Wher eupon, a break was taken,
after which the foll ow ng
proceedi ngs were had:)

BY M. WLLI AVE:

Q Okay, back on the record. This is the
Exhibit 6 for the deposition and it's narked at the
bot t om Dul ber g001531 and it's an enmil chain between
Paul Dul berg and Hans Mast dated Novenber 4th through

about Novenber 5th, is that accurate, Hans?
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A That's what it appears.

Q kay, and it appears at the bottomthat Paul
is asking you if he should bring anything to a
neeti ng.

A Ckay.

Q And that neeting appears to be at 3:00 p.m
on Novenber 4th of 2013.

A Ckay.

Q Is that an accurate description? GCkay? Do
you recall having --

A Go ahead, |I'm sorry.

Q Do you recall having a neeting on
Novenber 4th of 2013 with Paul Dul berg?

A | don't have an independent recoll ection.

Q kay. Ckay.

MR. FLYNN: Julia, now !l recall, this is a
separate exhibit you sent a little bit later than the
original download, so | did have this.

M5. WLLIAVMS: Ckay. Okay. We got it
wor ked out .

MR. FLYNN:. Yeah, okay.

BY MS. W LLI AMS:
Q kay. So you don't recall calling a neeting

for Novenber 4th?
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A W had |lots of neetings so --
Q Ckay.
A -- | don't have an i ndependent recollection

of that one particul ar date.

Q kay. Ckay, I'mgoing to stop screen
sharing. OCkay. |'mgoing to upload another file.
This is Deposition Exhibit 7. George, you probably
had it as [Exhibit 6, but for the purposes of this
deposition right nowit's going to be 7 and it's an
emai | chain dated --

A | have these on the conputer. You don't
need to, unless you want to, but |I'mjust saying |
have these on the conputer.

Q kay, but Barb needs them so that's why |
keep upl oading them otherw se she doesn't have them
Ckay. So Exhibit 7, and it's POP00181 and POP00182,
and it's two pages of an enmmil chain, Novenber 15th,
| ooks Ii ke on the second page it starts Novenber 15th
and ends Novenber 19th, is that accurate?

A Yes.

Q kay, great. So here it |ooks |ike Paul
started this email chain, but then on Novenber 18th
you note that, "The McQ@iires' attorney has offered

us, you, $5,000 in full settlenment of the claim
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against the McGuires only," do you see that?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Do you recall that offer being nade?

A | do have sone recollection of having a
conversation with them

Q kay. So I'mgoing to upload anot her
docunent and then we can keep going here. And then
this is Exhibit 8 and for -- it is a letter from
Ronal d Barch to you, Hans, and it's POP000667. Do
you have that?

A What's it dated?

Q ' msorry, dated Novenber 18, 2013.

A Yeah, | have that.

Q Ckay. And that's a settlenent letter from

Barch offering the settlenment of $5,000, correct?

A Ri ght.
Q Do you recall receiving this letter?
A | nmean, | don't today recall getting the

letter, but I'mfamliar with the transaction, yes.

Q Okay. GCkay. So you would have received the
$5, 000 offer from Barch and you communicated it to
Paul via the email on Novenber 18th?

A As well as when we tal ked, yes.

Ckay. Okay. And when did you talk?
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A Again, | don't know the dates. | just know
generally how this all transpired.

Q Wul d you have tal ked to Paul on the 18th
when the letter cane in?

A It's dated the 18th. | doubt I got it on
the 18th. Wenever | got it, | would have told Paul.

Q kay. And it looks like the email you sent,
which is Exhibit 7, comrunicated that offer?

A Ckay.

Q Wul d you have tal ked to the McQuires
attorney prior to receiving the letter about the
of fer?

A | don't recall. 1t mght have -- that m ght
have happened.

Q Okay. Do you recall whether you nmet with
Paul sonetinme after -- on or after Novenmber 18 to
di scuss the settlenent offer?

A ["'msure we did. | know we had several
conversations and neetings about that.

Q OGkay. In this email chain that's
Exhi bit 7 about hal fway down the page it says on
Novenber 18, 2013, at 7:40 p.m, Paul responds to
your enmail. Can you see that?

A Are we going back to the email now?
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Yep, it's POP00181
What exhi bit?

It's Exhibit 7.

7, that's the letter.

If may be 6 for you. It may be 6 for you.

> O >» O > O

Let's take a | ook. Wat page is the email?

Q The date at the top of the email chain is
Tuesday, Novenber 19, 2013.

A Yeah, | have that.

Q Ckay. And then about maybe hal fway down the
page it's dated on Novenber 18, 2013, at 7:40 p.m,
do you see that?

A Yep.

Q And there it says, "Only five? That's not

much at all," do you see that?

A That's his response, yes.

Q Right. R ght. Do you recall talking to
Paul about the $5,000 and that not being nuch?

A Li ke I said, yes, we've had plenty of
conversations and neetings on that.

Q Okay. When you originally offered the
7,500, did you talk about what the possible outcones

as far as counteroffers, what they may denand,

sonething like that, did you tal k about that prior to
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maki ng that $7,500 offer?

A | mean, | think |I generally understand what
you're asking. D d we just have general
conversations of nunbers? Yes.

Q kay. In this email and this is -- |
understand this is speculation, but in this email it
appears that Paul is surprised that it's $5,000 was
the offer, correct? Wuld that be fair to
characterize it that way?

A s he surprised at it or is he surprised at
the amount? It looks Iike he didn't think it was
much.

Q Right. So if you originally offered 7,500
and they canme back at 5,000, in your experience, does
that seem i ke nmuch of a difference when it cones to
counteroffers?

MR FLYNN: |'ll object to the form

THE W TNESS: Yeah, |I'm not real sure what
you nmean by that.
BY M. WLLI AVE:

Q | guess |let nme rephrase because | don't
think 1'"'mgetting to the point. Prior to naking the
$7,500 offer, did you discuss with Paul that the

McCGuires may cone back with an offer that was | ower
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t han the 7,5007?

A Again, I'm-- | understand the question.
|"mjust not trying to play ganes, but you're asking
me do | recall specific words that are used or
topics. Al | can tell you about this is we tal ked
about the whole gamut of options, that | didn't feel
it was a strong case, that they were reaching out to
us for $5,000, and that bal anci ng everything, the
ri sks, costs, even though it wasn't nuch, it was
sonet hing that woul d have been desirable for himif
he wants to end up with noney versus the McQuires.

Q ' mgoing to add anot her exhibit here.

Ckay, for the purposes of this deposition it's
Deposition Exhibit 9. This is a nenorandum At the
top it will say, "Menorandum " and the date is
Novenber 20, 2013, and at the bottomit's identified
as POP and then 3 -- there's 000003, | believe. Do
you have that?

A What exhibit is it?

Q | think you're probably going to have it as
Exhibit 8, but for the purposes of this deposition
it's actually going to be Exhibit 9.

A Ckay.

Q And it's Dul berg Mast Meno,
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2013 Novenber 20.

A kay, yeah.

Q Ckay. It looks fromthis neno that you had
a neeting with Paul and his friend on Novenber 20th,
is that accurately reflected what's stated in the
meno?

A Yes.

Q Do you renenber this docunent? Do you
recall this?

A As | said before, | understand what you're
asking, but we've had lots of neetings. Do |

remenber that particular date, no, but | renmenber the

nmeet i ngs.

Q Do you recogni ze this nenorandunf

A | recogni ze the discussion that's referenced
in the nmeno. | haven't seen the neno for 7 years.

Q Ckay. Do you recall the advice that you
gave in that neeting of Novenber 20th?

A Yeah, like | said, it's summarized a little
bit in there. Yeah.

Q kay. And what was the -- Wiy don't -- Wat
was t he advice that you gave?

A Do you want ne to read the neno or you want

me to just tell you generally what the topics were or
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what ?

Q CGenerally to the best that you can recall

A Looks Ii ke on that day he brought his friend
i n because before he wanted to consider the offer, he
wanted to have his friend come with himto tal k about
these issues with ne. So we went over --

Q So --

A Go ahead.

Q No, I'Il let you finish. Go ahead. |I'm
sorry.
A. Wll, we went over all the issues, all the

risks, all the noney issues, all of the issues.

Q Do you recall who the friend was?

A Not as | sit here today.

Q Fromthis nmeno it says, "Paul nmaintains the
McCGuires controlled everything that they were doing
and you told himthat wasn't what the evidence seened
to show." So can you expound on what -- This is
really going to be a conplicated question, but to the
best of your ability, can you explain what the theory
of your case was against the McGQuires and what the
evi dence was that was going to -- what evidence was
your reason for believing that you couldn't prove

your theory?
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A W already talked a little bit about that
earlier, but every tinme we net, we tal ked about this
because this was a subject at the tine with the
McCGuires and given the testinony of the MQuires,
given Paul's testinony, given the |ack of any
evi dence that they were controlling any work or even
knew what Paul was doing, | felt it was a big, high
risk of noving forward on that claim

Q So I'mgoing to try to sumarize this.
Maybe in parts. So in order for the McQiires to be
Iiable for Gagnon's work, Paul would have to prove in
his case that the McQuires controlled Gagnon's work,
Is that accurate?

A Are you asking ne if that's an accurate

statenent of the | aw?

Q Yes.
A | think that's partially right. There's a
|ot nore to it. It's different branches and el enents

t hat you have to prove, control was a factual matter
and he would have to be able to establish there was
sone oversight. It goes down into sone factua
i ssues that you have to be able to show.

Q Ckay. So can you -- To the best of your

ability, can you kind of walk ne through for the
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negl i gence claim against the McQuires what the | egal
el ements were that you woul d have to show?

A | haven't brushed up recently on that area,
but | can tell you that under the case | aw they have
to have sone oversight and control over what was
goi ng on and sone involvenent in the work and sone
know edge hi gher and above what Paul was doi ng, and
if you look at their testinony, they were not out
there, they were not |looking at it, they didn't even
really know what Paul was doing frankly.

Q And what about David? Did they have to
control what David was doing as well?

A. | nmeant David, |'msorry.

Q kay. So the McGuires woul d have to have
oversi ght and control over David Gagnon?

A Over the work.

Q Ckay. Over the work. GCkay. So WIIliam and
Caroline did buy the chain saw, correct?

A | believe that is true.

Q kay. But then David Gagnon was the one
operating the chain saw?

A Ri ght.

Q And you woul d have to show in Paul's case

that Bill and Caroline, one or the other, had control

U S. LEGAL SUPPORT
www. usl egal support.com



http://www.uslegalsupport.com

© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N B O © 0 N O O N~ W N LB O

Hans Mast
June 25, 2020 45

over David's operation of the chain saw?

A Control could nean a |ot of things. They
woul d have to be in a position to instruct him tell
hi mwhat to do, be aware of the work that was being
done and have sonme control over what he was doi ng.

Q Ckay. So in your -- Your opinion of the
case was that it was insufficient for themto have
sinply purchased the chain saw and provided it to
Gagnhon?

A Yeah.

Q And what about if they were paying hinf

Wul d that nmake any difference?

A. No.
Q |"msorry, | don't know or no?
A. No.

Q Just bear with nme for a second here. And
you informed Paul -- I'msorry, let ne back up. In
exhibit -- Deposition Exhibit 7, so it's probably
6 for you, the email chain between you and Paul,
roughly Novenber 18th through the 19th, Popovich
000181, on the bottom of that first page,

Novenber 18, 2013, at 1:28 p.m there's an email from
you. Do you see that?

A Yes.
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Q “In addition, the McGQuires' attorney," so
it's ATTY, "has offered us, you, 5,000 in ful
settlenent of the claimagainst the McQuires only.
As we di scussed, they have no liability in the case
for what Dave did as property owners so they likely
will get out of the case on a notion." Did | read
that correctly?

A Yes.

Q So this is where you told Paul that you
didn't believe the MQiires had any liabilities for
the reasons -- in part for the reasons we just
di scussed?

A Ri ght .

Q Utimtely Paul accepted that $5,000 offer

correct?
A Yes.
Q And you communi cated that to the other side

|ater in 2013, does that sound correct to you?

A Yes.
Q "' m upl oadi ng Exhibit 10, and it should be
Exhibit 10 for you as well, and it's a nmenorandum

dat ed Decenmber 20, 2013, and at the bottomit's
POP000884, do you see that?
A. Yes.
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Q And that's a nenorandumthat you wote to
the legal file; is that correct?

A It | ooks Iike that.

Q | think | already said this, it's dated
Decenber 20, 20137

A Yes.

Q kay. And the substance of it, it appears
that you had a conversation on Decenber 18th with
Paul and that he was authorizing you to accept the
$5, 000 settlement?

A Yes.

Q kay. Do you recall that conversation of
Decenber 18?

A | recall having lots of conversations, this
is one of them and generally | do recall the
conversations in a general sense, not the exact
dat es.

Q Ckay. So you don't renenber anything
specific to this Decenber 18th call what you woul d
have di scussed?

A Not ot her than what |'ve already said we
di scussed over the tine.

Q Ckay.

A Paul was wei ghing his options. He knew the
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ri sk and he had -- he wanted some tinme to think about
it and consider it.

Q Ckay. Al right, just bear with ne here.
Ckay, | just uploaded Deposition Exhibit 11, it's a
settl enent acceptance letter, letterhead from Thonas
Popovi ch's office dated Decenber 26, 2013. Hans,
your signature appears on there and it's POP00670.
Do you recogni ze this docunent?

A That appears to be a letter from Popovich's
office to defense counsel.

Q Do you recogni ze your signature on here?

A Yes.

Q And this is the letter where you accepted
the offer on behalf of Paul, is that accurate?

A It appears, yeah.

Q Ckay. So the Defendants nmade the original
of fer around Novenber 18 and Paul --

Novenber 18, 2013, and Paul accepted it around

Decenber 20, 2013. Is that statenent accurate?
A | don't have, like | said, independent
recollection of the dates. | would just have to go

of f the docunents.
Q kay. Was there -- If that tinmefranme is

roughly correct, was there anything that occurred
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during that tinefrane that indicated to you, you
know, why Paul changed his mnd fromoriginally
thinking it was too little to now accepting it. Was
there anything that stuck out in your m nd about

t hat ?

A Yeah.

Q Can you expound on that?

A. VWll, he had his friend with himduring our
nmeeting and he reviewed the depositions.

Q Ckay. Did he not have the depositions prior
to that?

A | remenber he asked for copies of them so |
provided themto him

Q Ckay, and when you say the depositions, do
you nmean just the party depositions, the McQuires and
t he Gagnon?

A | don't renenber if | gave himthe doctors.
| don't renenber which ones | gave him but | know
specifically it was Gagnon and the MGCuires.

Q kay, |'m upl oadi ng Dul berg Mast Dep
Exhibit 12. This is titled, "Legal Research.” And
this is hard because there's -- it's 27 pages. Sone
of them have Bates nunbers, but sone of themare

bl ack on the bottom so | think the Bates nunbers
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didn't -- didn't take, but it's roughly -- |ooks Iike
roughly 204, nmaybe 205, Dul berg204, 205 through
roughly Dul berg00304 -- Actually, I'msorry, these
aren't going to be continuous. But do you have that
packet of |egal research in front of you? |t appears
to be copies out of a -- copies of case | aw out of

t he Northeastern Digest.

A | just have the one case here.
Q Just one case? Wiich -- Wat's the case
title?

A. The first one, it's L AJ ATDO

Q kay. Do you -- Did you copy this case | aw?

A | don't know.

Q Do you recall providing any case law to
Paul ?

A | don't knowif | did or didn"t. | don't

know i f he asked.

Q Ckay. Do you recall doing case |aw
research?
A I"msure | did, yeah.

Q Wul d have there been a nmeno or sonething
regardi ng that research?
A Not necessarily. | was famliar with the

| aw.
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Q kay. Okay. Was there any -- Was there any
case |l aw that stuck out to you, any particular cases
that stuck out to you?

MR. FLYNN. (Object to the form

THE WTNESS: You nean stuck out to nme with
regard to Paul and his case?
BY M5. W LLI AVE:

Q No. Were there any applicabl e cases that
stuck out to you one way or the other as to whether
the M@Qiires would be |iable? Ws there any specific
cases that nade you think that the McGQuires may not
be liable given the facts in Paul's case?

A I mean, you deal with this issue a ot and |
can't think of one particular nane of a case, but
t hese cases all go along the sane line, so there were
| ots of cases on this one particular issue. It

wasn't a conplicated issue.

Q So particularly the issue of control of
Gagnon.
A O a premses owner's liability for an

i ndependent contractor.
Q kay. So can you expl ain generally what an
I ndependent contractor is?

A "Il give you have an answer if you want,
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but just, | nmean, we're tal king now, what is it,

7 years later? | haven't been asked to do any
research before today's deposition, but so, | nean,
if you're asking nme for what the case |aw says, |'d
have to | ook at the case law, if that's what you're
aski ng.

Q ' m aski ng based on your -- on your
experi ence and know edge as a personal injury
attorney and not necessarily related to Dul berg's
case specifically.

A Ckay.

Q But based on your know edge and experience
in premses liability cases, what is an i ndependent
contractor?

A Soneone that works on their own.

Q And can you expl ain what you nmean by on
t heir own?

A. Sonebody that's hired, |ike, sonebody that's
hired to paint the house.

Q kay. So sonebody that's hired by a

homeowner or naybe a busi ness?

A. Yes.
Q But soneone that's hired by a honeowner but
t he honeowner doesn't -- doesn't tell them how to do
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their job?

A Ri ght.

Q Did you ever obtain a copy of the MQuires'
I nsurance policy, do you recall?

A | don't have an independent recoll ection.

Q Did you ever advise Paul as to the limts of
the McGQuires' policy?

A ' msure we tal ked about it.

Q Ckay. | just upl oaded Dul berg Mast
Deposition Exhibit 13 McCGuire Interrogatory Answers
and they're Bates stanped Dul berg000162 is the first
page and there's roughly 14 pages. Do you see that
docunent ?

A Yes.

MR. FLYNN. This is 14?

MS. WLLIAVS: It should be Exhibit 13 --
13 or 14. | think | have it as 13. Yes, okay. And
this -- I'"'mlooking at paragraph 15 or at least |I'm
trying to | ook at paragraph 15.

Q Okay. I n paragraph 15 it | ooks like there
was a question about the homeowner's insurance and
the McGQuires respond with their personal liability
and their nedical liability, do you see that?

A Yes.
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Q Okay. Now that you see that, do you recal
whet her you ever got a copy of that policy?

A | don't -- You nean the dec pages or the
whol e policy?

Q Either. D d you get a copy of the dec
pages?

A | have no idea.

Q And you have no i dea whether you got a copy
of the whole policy?

A Yeah, don't know.

Q But they are representing what their
i nsurance was and the liability there, correct, or
their liability coverage there?

A That's what it appears.

Q Ckay. And these -- This was -- |ooks I|ike
this was responded to based on the MQires'
signature on roughly the 12th page of the docunent.
It looks Iike it was August 6th of 2012.

A That's what it appears.

Q Yeah. So prior to when they would have nade
the settlement offers, correct?

A That's what it appears.

Q Ckay. D d you ever talk to Paul about

those -- the limts of the insurance policy and how
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that may be inportant in his case?

A | suspect we tal ked about the policy, yeah.
Q Ckay. Prior to any settlenent discussions?
A Yeah.

Q Okay. But you've already testified you
didn't -- You don't know if you -- You don't know if
you obtained a copy. Wat about Gagnon's insurance

policy, did you ever obtain a copy of that?

A | don't know. | don't know.

Q Ckay. Did you issue interrogatories to
M. Gagnon?

A ["msure | did.

Q Let ne upload this. Wuld they have been in

Popovich's file if you --

A Yes.
Q kay. So | can tell you, | don't recall
seei ng any docunents issued by you. |I'mgoing to

upl oad a docunent that appears to be interrogatories
i ssued by McQuires' counsel in the case. 1'm going
to upload it right now It's Exhibit 14 and Answers
to Co-Defendant Interrogatories and it is stanped
Dul berg00178. Do you see that docunent?

A Yes.

Q It appears that these were issued by
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Co- Def endants, in other words, the MCuires, does
t hat seem accurate to you?

A Yes.

Q So woul d you have issued interrogatories in
addition to what the McCGuires' counsel issued?

A It's probable.

Q kay. Do you recall one way or the other
today as we sit here?

A Not other than it's probable | did.

Q | have not seen those in discovery, so if
they exist, we'd ask that they be produced. Do you
ever recall talking to Paul about the policy limts
of the Gagnon insurance policy?

A It's a topic that frequently cones up. |
don't have an independent recollection.

Q Wul d you have any nenos or notes on that?

A | could. | may. | don't have an
I ndependent recollection of that.

Q kay. And, again, that would have been in

the file that -- in Thomas Popovich's file?
A Correct.
Q In your know edge and experience not rel ated

to the Dul berg case but just in your general

knowl edge and experience, are there any situations
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where a honeowner may be strictly liable for soneone
doing work on their property?

MR, FLYNN: |'mjust going to object to the
hypot heti cal being i naccurate and i nconplete, also
calls for an expert opinion. Wile this witness is a
| awyer, | won't necessarily -- | don't expect to cal
himas an F-2 or F-3 witness in the case.

THE WTNESS: So you're asking if a
honmeowner can be strictly liable for an injury?

BY M5. W LLI AVE:

Q Ri ght.

A In general ternms, not with regard to this
case?

Q No, in general terns. |I'mjust asking in
general terns in your -- based on your experience and

know edge of injury cases.

A. | mean, | think -- Not in Paul's case, but |
think I could probably think of sonething that maybe
could be -- as products strict liability, there's
hazardous materials strict liability, there's
different issues that potentially factually if
they' re applicable could apply, but not in Paul's
case.

Q Ckay. Just in general, what kind of
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hazardous -- Wen you say hazardous, are you tal king
about hazardous chenical -type cases?

A There's a string of cases when you're
dealing with hazardous chem cals and hazar dous
materials, like a bonb or sonething |ike that, things
l'i ke that.

Q kay. Okay. Are there any, |ike, hazardous
actions? Could sonething be considered, like, somne
type of action be considered hazardous?

A What do you nean by action? Activity?

Q Yeah, like, I"'mtrying to give you an
exanpl e because |'mjust trying to understand it nore
than anything else. Yeah, is there an activity that
you coul d be doing on your property, | don't know,

i ke, what about tearing down your hone, woul d that
be considered -- would that be sonething that could
be hazardous?

A There woul d have to be statutory authority
for that and there isn't.

Q Okay. OCkay. Okay. So generally for strict
liability there has to be sone type of statutory
authority for that?

A O common |law. Yeah. They have a

particul ar fact pattern.
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Q kay. But this case particularly is sinply
a negligence case. Paul's case against the McCQuires
was a sinple negligent failure to control case in
your opi nion?

A That's what was pl ed.

Q OCkay. Did you ever make any -- ever
consi der pleading any other allegations?

MR. FLYNN. (Qbject to the form

THE WTNESS: | don't -- No. Not that |
recal | .

M5. WLLIAMS: Ckay. Can we take about a
4-m nute break?

MR FLYNN: Sure.

M5. WLLIAVS: Let's just take -- | just
want to take a quick break and review ny notes and |
want to give everybody an opportunity to kind of
stretch for a second. 1'mgoing to go on nute.

MR. FLYNN: Ckay.

(Wher eupon, a break was taken,
after which the foll ow ng
proceedi ngs were had:)

M5. WLLIAVS: Let's go back on the record.
Ckay, thank you everyone. Ckay, just a little bit

nmor e here.
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Q On -- Wen you were talking to Paul about
settlenment in the general tinefranme of
Novenber - Decenber 2013, did you ever suggest at that
tinme that he seek alternative counsel or any
reconmendation related to that?

A | think that did conme up.

Q Do you recall what your advice to himwas or
what the di scussion was?

A | think, you know, we always tal k about the
ri sks of not settling and further down the road what,
you know, having to try the case and having to try
prove the case or getting a notion for summary
judgnent, having the costs exceed the benefits and
all that, and | think ny position with Paul, since he
didn't give a relatively very good deposition, ny
t hought was we were going to have a tough tine, an
uphill battle, and he can al ways seek other counsel
i f he doesn't agree with ne.

Q And you just stated that you thought Pau
didn't give a very good deposition, that may not have
been your exact | anguage, but roughly that the
deposition wasn't great. Can you explain what -- as
you recall it, what about the deposition was

probl ematic?
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A | mean, he even agreed with ne, but he just
doesn't do a very good j ob.

Q You nean -- Can you expand on that a little
bit?

A As a witness, as | recall, again, it's been
quite some tine, as | recall he was -- his testinony
wasn't given -- wasn't strong, it wasn't definite, it
didn't have credible points and sone points were
i ncredi bl e when conpared to other -- other testinony.
| mean, there's just a lot -- there was a | ot of
problens with his testinony.

Q Okay. Do you recall the circunmstances that
Paul described as to why he cane to the McGuires'?

A | think he was either going to pick up
sonmet hi ng or drop sonething off.

Q Ckay.

A | don't really recall. |'mjust thinking
back now.

Q Okay. Do you recall whether he was asked to
come over to help with the tree, to help take down
the tree? Ws that the purpose of his visit?

A | don't recall that.

Q Wuld it matter as for liability whether it

was or wasn't?
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A As by who? As to whose liability?
Q I"msorry, his and McGQuires' liability.
A As to how he got there?

Q Whet her he was -- Wiether he was invited for
t he purpose of assisting with the renoval of the
tree.

MR. FLYNN. (Qbject to the form Just
i nvited by whon?

THE WTNESS: Yeah, that's a conplicated
guestion, but | don't think --
BY MS. W LLI AMS:

Q Let me clarify if | can. Ckay. So ny
guestion was does it matter if the McQuires invited
Paul to their residence to renove the tree on that --
on the June -- roughly June, | believe, 2011 date?

MR. FLYNN. Qbject to the hypothetical.
THE WTNESS: | don't think it matters.
BY M. WLLI AVE:

Q kay. Would it matter if they were paying
Paul ?

A That's not the issue. The issue is Dave.

Q kay. So the relationship between the
McCGuires and Paul is somewhat irrel evant?

A I"mjust saying the issue really that --
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about liability is Dave's relationship with them

Q Because Dave is the one that controlled the
chain saw that injured Paul, is that accurate?
A. He was the one hired to do the work or asked

to do the work, however, whatever that background
was.

Q And Caroline and WIlliam MGQuire both
testified that they had never used a chain saw, is
that correct?

A I think that's accurate. 1'd have to
refresh ny nenory, but that sounds right.

Q kay. Do you renenber discussing bankruptcy
wi th Paul ?

A | don't renenber that.

Q Do you remenber that Paul filed for
bankruptcy? Do you recall that?

A | saw a -- Maybe | didn't see one. |
remenber there was sone sort of bankruptcy matter. |
don't know the dates or when it cane up.

Q Okay. Do you recall if you advised Paul to
file for bankruptcy?

A | don't advise people to file for
bankr upt cy.

Q Al right. So you would not have advised
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Paul to file for bankruptcy?

A Woul d not .

Q Ckay. And then sonetine after the McQuire
settlenent but before the -- but while the Gagnhon --
t he cl ai ns agai nst David Gagnon were still pending

you withdrew fromthe case; is that correct?

A. The law firmdid. | -- Again, he hired the
law firm

Q Sure. Sure. I|I'msorry. The Popovich firm
wi t hdr ew?

A Ri ght.

Q And | -- Let's see -- | think we're on
Exhi bit 14.

THE REPORTER  15.
M5. WLLIAMS: 15, okay.
Q | have, | think, one nore and then -- Ckay,
| am upl oadi ng [Exhi bit 15, Dul berg Mast Dep
Exhibit 15 It's a notion to wthdraw and it's four
pages and on the first page it has a Dul berg versus
Gagnon case caption and file stanped March 13, 2015.
Do you have that docunent?
A Yeah.
Q And this is the Popovich's firmnotion to

w t hdraw as counsel for Paul Dul berg in the Dul berg
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versus Gagnon- McCQuire case, correct?

A Yes.

Q And you drafted or caused this notion to be
drafted and fil ed?

A Yes.

Q And was it granted that sane day it was
filed?

A I"'msure it had to be noticed up.

Q Ckay. On the notice of notion it | ooks |ike
it was noticed for March 13, filed on March 13, but
sent to the service list on March 5th, does that seem
accur ate?

A That's what it says.

Q But at any rate, you withdrew sonetine in
roughly March of 20157

A It appears that way. Again, | don't have an
I ndependent recollection of the date.

Q Ckay. Okay. That's fine. And | didn't see
it -- an order actually show ng the exact date of
when you withdrew. Can you explain why you w thdrew
fromthe case?

A The short version is just we had a
di fference of opinion.

Q Can you give nme the long version or slightly
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| onger ?
A Vel l, we have difference of opinion but Paul
was a bit difficult, so | just had to -- there were a

couple tines that | told himl was going to w thdraw
and then he begged ne not to and so | didn't, but
then ultimately he -- it got pretty -- it got pretty
tough. He was sayi ng sone unfavorable, unflattering
things and | just decided we're not going to get
anywhere, |'m going to nove on.

Q Ckay, so you -- the client relationship
broke down and you w t hdrew?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Was there anything about Gagnon's
l[tability or your thoughts on his liability that
woul d have caused you to w t hdraw?

A That was anot her aspect of it. Paul was
| ooking for the stars and the noon and | didn't see
it.

Q And when you say Paul was | ooking for the
stars and the noon, you nean -- Well, what do you
nmean by that?

A He was | ooking for a | ot of noney.

Q Ckay, and what was your opinion as to David

Gagnon's liability in the case?
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A | didn't think nuch of the liability issue.
| thought it was going to be a |ong, tough haul given
that --

Q And - -

A -- Paul was going to be our only witness on
our side pretty nuch.

Q kay, and there were no other wtnesses
ot her than Paul and David; is that correct?

A Correct.

Q And what about -- Anything related to, |ike,
the actual injury, the doctors' depositions or
anything |ike that?

A That all -- It was the whole ball of wax.
The doctors weren't supporting his claim Dave was
saying he's a liar, he tried to bribe him There was
just a lot of -- a lot of bad stuff, not enough good
stuff.

Q Ckay, and then at that point you and Pau
di sagreed and Paul retained alternative counsel?

A Ri ght.

Q kay. Was there anything el se about the
case that you can recall right now that gave you
pause as to the liability either to the McCGuires or

Davi d Gagnon?
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A Anyt hing other than what? Pretty much
everyt hing was not good.

Q Ckay. | nean, anything that we haven't
really di scussed here today. W' ve tal ked about
Paul 's testinony, Gagnon's testinony a little bit,
the MQuires, the premses liability. W talked --
You nentioned the doctors' depositions. Is that sort
of the general gamut of it?

A That's the whol e case.

Q Ckay. Have you ever had any ot her chain saw
liability cases other than this particul ar case?

A I"'msure | have. | don't -- |If you're going
to ask ne to nane a date, | don't know. | nean, it's
not a conmon issue, but it conmes up fromtine to
tine.

Q kay. Did you state -- Did you seek out a
liability expert, a chain saw liability expert,

during the tine you were representi ng Paul ?

A No.
Q Is there a reason for that?
A That's always a possibility. [It's always a

consideration, but | had to consider even nore
whet her we coul d even get to prove a credible case

and that was ny first object, ny first -- ny first
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tier. It doesn't do any good to hire an expert if
you don't have a good case.

Q Ckay. Okay. |If you were going to take the
case to trial, at that point would you have hired an
expert, chain saw expert?

A For this case, | don't know [|I'd have to
| ook at it again and see what we need to prove, what
they're arguing. There's -- As | recall, they
weren't arguing the chain saw -- They weren't

arguing. He didn't get hit wth the chain saw. So

|"mnot real sure. 1|'d have to think whether we need
to prove -- what we need to prove, anything nore than
t hat .

Q Ckay.

A It was nore what happened, who caused it to

happen, not that it happened.
Q Ckay. |Is there a difference between an

I ndependent contractor and an enpl oyee?

A In ternms of what? In terns of duty or what?

Q Right. In terns of the supervisor's duty.
So if the Gagnons -- If Gagnon was, and this is a
hypot hetical, if Gagnon was an enpl oyee of his

parents as opposed to an i ndependent contractor,

woul d there be a liability difference?
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MR. FLYNN: Qbject to the hypothetical.
It's inaccurate and i nconpl ete.

THE WTNESS: That's a very conplicated
guestion, even though it doesn't sound |like one. It
depends on | ots of things.

BY M5. WLLI AVE:

Q Okay. We've already tal ked about an
i ndependent contractor. So just in your experience
and knowl edge, what is a supervisor's duty as to an
enpl oyee? That's actually a really terrible

guestion. Let's strike that question.

Is there a difference -- Is there a
di fference between the control aspect of -- Wuld
an -- Let nme start again. This is a conplicated

question, nore conplicated than |I'm anticipating
right now. Ckay.

We' ve generally established that in order
for an -- soneone who hires an i ndependent contractor
to be liable for the actions of that independent
contractor, they would have to control the work. In
a situation, an enpl oyer-enpl oyee situation, is that
control elenent al so present when considering
liability? Does the enployer have to control the

wor k of the enployee in the sane way?
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A | think there are --
MR. FLYNN: | just want to raise an
objection for the record. | object to the form |

think that the prem se of the question indicated that

we al ready established sone | egal precedent. | don't
think that's the case. | don't think that he's
testified to that, so, again, I'll just object to the

form But if you can --

THE WTNESS:. You're asking ne to conpare
two different theories wthout a fact pattern, but
there's a lot to each issue and it's hard to just
say, well, if you have this, then you have that.
There's a lot of different facts that apply, but now
|"mforgetting what you asked initially about the
enpl oyer - enpl oyee questi on.

BY Ms5. WLLI AVE:

Q So | guess ny question to the point of is an
enpl oyer liable for their enployees in a different
way than a honmeowner would be liable for an

i ndependent contractor?

A | think --
Q Based on -- You go ahead.
A. | think under the law there are different

el ements to those actions.
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Q And there are --

A Go ahead.

Q So there would be different elenents if
sonet hi ng was an enpl oyer - enpl oyee situation, that

woul d be different aw, different case | aw?

A Yeah, there's a different cause of action.
Q Ckay.
A Different elenents potentially have to be

pl ed and proved.

Q Ckay. But in this case you were trying to
prove -- In Dulberg' s case against the McQuires and
Gagnon you were trying to show that -- The theory of
t he case was that Gagnon was not an enpl oyee, but an
I ndependent contractor, and the McGuires had to
control himin order to be |iable?

A Wll, that's ultimately what it appeared.
You followed the evidence, you follow the facts, so
if it turned out it was enpl oyee-enpl oyer - enpl oyee
relationship, that's a different eval uation.

Q kay. So but, for the nost part, you
were -- your evaluations of the liability were based
on an i ndependent contractor anal ysis?

A Wll, that's where it went because of the

evi dence.
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M5. WLLIAMS: Ckay. |I'mgoing to go on
mute for just a second so you guys don't hear ne
shuffling papers, but | think I'mal nost finished
here or may be finished.

MR FLYNN:  Okay.

BY M5, W LLI AMS:

Q kay. Just a couple nore questions and then
we'll wap things up here. Wen did you first advise
Paul that you didn't think the clains agai nst Gagnon
were going to be very strong?

A Probabl y day one.

Q Before the settlenent with the McGuires?

A Yeah.

Q And did you discuss that several tines prior

to that McCGuire settl enent?

A Li ke I said, we discussed those issues every
time we'd neet, liability issues, damages issues.
Q Do you recall any particular instances, |ike

maybe after Paul's deposition, after David' s
deposition, did that stick out in your mnd at all?
A Di scussing what, the issues of liability
agai nst Gagnon?
Q Yes.

A Those are probably sonething we tal ked about

U S. LEGAL SUPPORT
www. usl egal support.com



http://www.uslegalsupport.com

© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N B O © 0 N O O N~ W N LB O

Hans Mast
June 25, 2020 74

every visit.

Q kay. So we discussed this a little bit
before, but | believe the testinony was that the
MCGuires testified that they purchased the chain saw
and | believe you said yes, that was your
recol lection as well; is that correct?

A That sounds right. | just don't have an
i ndependent recollection at this point.

Q kay. If the McQuires -- Let's assune
that -- Just for the purposes of this, let's assune
that the MQuires did -- it was their chain saw, they
purchased it and |l et Gagnon use it on their property.
Wul d they have any duties to share the manual of
that chain saw with Gagnon or provide any ot her
education as to the use of the chain saw to Gagnon?

A Al'l right, so you're asking ne to nmake a
judicial decision whether they had a duty or not?

Q No, |'m asking you in your experience wth
t hese types of cases is there any duty there for
t hem

A Al right, so a |legal duty?

Q Right. Right. And -- Go ahead, George.

MR. FLYNN: Yeah, I'Il just object. | nean,

there isn't any evidence that Gagnon asked for a
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manual , for one, but as far as him providing |egal
opi ni ons not based on the facts of this case, I'm
just going to caution himnot to provide what could
be consi dered an expert opinion.
THE WTNESS: You don't want ne to answer?
MR FLYNN: It's up to you. | don't knowif
you can.
THE WTNESS: | don't renenber the question.
You' re asking ne should the McCuires have given
Gagnon the manual to the chain saw?
BY MS. W LLI AMS:
Q Yes.
A Sure, if he asked for it or if they wanted
to give it to him
Q Are there any other warnings that they
shoul d have provi ded?
A See, | nean, you're asking ne to -- | get
the question, but |I'msaying you re asking ne to
eval uate the conduct of both parties and interpret
something and | don't know that that's ny position as
a witness, but should they have warned hinf You
know, sure, go ahead and warn him but obviously when
you take on a piece of equipnent that you're skilled

and experienced in operating, you should be able to
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operate it effectively yourself safely.

Q Sure. GCkay. And --

A So I nean --

Q Ckay. But today you're not giving an
opi ni on one way or the other whether they had a duty
to provide warnings, whether they had a duty to
provi de the manual , fair enough?

A Yeah, |egal wise, no, I'"'mnot giving you a
| egal opinion on that.

M5. WLLIAVS: Ckay. Okay, | don't think I
have anyt hing further.
MR. FLYNN: | actually have just a few
foll owups to that.
M5. WLLIAMS: Sure.
EXAM NATI ON
BY MR FLYNN:

Q Hans, is your understandi ng based on the
evidence that there were only two eyewi tnesses to
M. Dul berg's accident, correct?

A Correct.

Q That was M. Dul berg hinself and David
Gagnon?

A Correct.

Q And did you have an understanding as to how
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t he evidence and testinony shook out as to each
gentl eman's version of the accident and how it
occurred?

A. Well, as | said before, | thought Paul's
case was going to be very difficult to prove based on
the testinony of everybody, credibility issues, and
the | ack of evidence to support and prove.

Q Davi d Gagnon's testinony regarding the facts
surroundi ng the accident differed from Paul Dul berg's
version of the facts, correct?

A Correct.

Q You took that into account in your
eval uati on and anal ysis of the case?

A Definitely.

Q Did you al so take into account your
prof essi onal analysis of Paul Dul berg' s performance
as a wtness at his discovery deposition?

A Definitely.

Q You didn't think he made a very good w tness
for hinself, did he?

A He even admts he didn't and | don't think
he -- | think -- that was one of the worst -- that
was one of ny worst fears with this case. | had lots

of cases and on a scale of weak w tnesses, he's
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probably up at the top, and |I'm not putting hi mdown,
that's just a reality and I think he even

acknow edged that reality.

Q Ckay. Not everyone is a professional
W t ness?
A Ri ght.
Q kay. Cenerally speaking, your eval uation

of the case hinged in part on whether the MQuires
controll ed the manner and nethod of the use of the
chain saw, correct?

A Ri ght.

Q Do you have any recollection as to what the
McQuires were doing while the work was bei ng done?

A They were inside the house, just another day
to them They weren't even -- | don't think even
payi ng attention to what was goi ng on outside.

Q Dd M. McQiire testify that he was watching
tel evision inside the house while David was worki ng
on the tree?

A They were both inside as | recall.

Q Your reconmendation or suggestion that
M. Dul berg settle the case for $5,000 was based on
your analysis of the entire case, including the risks

and benefits of going forward and potentially | osing
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the case at trial, correct?

A Yes.

Q Did you have any way to predict whether the
case would result in a verdict on behalf of the
plaintiff in the case against the MQuires?

A ['"'m sorry?

Q Did you have any -- Did you have any
certainty as to whether M. Dul berg could prevail at
trial on liability against the McCQuires?

A | would have staked a | ot that we woul d not
have recovered in the case and just sonething that
didn't cone up with the direct is they didn't offer
the arbitrator to ne. That was sonething that was
| ater decided. | talked to them about that. They
did not offer that to me, so that was not an option
to me.

Q So you were -- Based on your professional
judgnent, you suggested that you attenpt to settle
the matter as opposed to taking it to trial versus

the McGuires, correct?

A Ri ght.
MR. FLYNN. Okay. That's all | have.
M5. W LLI AVS: | have no foll ow up.

THE REPORTER:  Si gnat ure?

U S. LEGAL SUPPORT
www. usl egal support.com



http://www.uslegalsupport.com

© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N B O © 0 N O O N~ W N LB O

Hans Mast
June 25, 2020

80

THE WTNESS: 1'Il waive signature.
M5. WLLIAVS: We'IlIl order the original,
E-tran.

MR FLYNN: |'ll take a regular and a m ni

copy.
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DECLARATI ON UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY

I, HANS MAST, do hereby certify under
penalty of perjury that | have read the foregoing
transcript of ny deposition taken on June 25, 2020;
that | have nade such corrections as appear noted
herein in ink, initialed by ne; that ny testinony as
contai ned herein, as corrected, is true and correct.

Dated this __ day of :

20, at , Illinois.

HANS MAST
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STATE OF ILLINOS )
) SS
COUNTY OF C OO K )

|, Barbara G Smith, Certified Shorthand
Reporter and Notary Public in and for the County of
Cook, State of Illinois, do hereby certify that on
the 25th of June, A . D., 2020, the deposition of the
w t ness, HANS MAST, called by the Defendants, was
taken renotely before ne, reported stenographically
and was thereafter reduced to typewiting through
conput er-ai ded transcription.

The said w tness, HANS MAST, was first duly
sworn to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing
but the truth, and was then exam ned upon ora
I nterrogatori es.

| further certify that the foregoing is a
true, accurate and conplete record of the questions
asked of and answers nade by the said witness, at the
time and pl ace herei nabove referred to.

The signature of the wi tness was wai ved by
agr eenent .

The undersigned is not interested in the
wi thin case, nor of kin or counsel to any of the

parties.
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Wtness ny official signature and seal as
Notary Public, in and for Cook County, Illinois on
this 7th day of July, A D., 2020.

Hf§f3§%¢JQ§”

Barbara G Smth, CSR RPR

Not ary Public

200 West Jackson Boul evard, Suite 600
Chicago, Illinois 60606

Li cense No. 084-002753
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I agree to employ the LAW OFFICES OF THOMAS 1. POPOVICH, P.C.
(hereinafter "my attorney") to represent me in the prosecution or settlement of my claim against
persons or entities responsible for causing me to suffer injuries and damages on the day of

20 .

My attorney agrees to make no charge for legal services unless a recovery is made

in my claim. The approval of any settlement amount cannot be made without my knowledge and
consent, '

I agree to pay my attorney in consideration for his legal services a sum equal to
one-third (33 1/3%) of my recovery from my claim by suit or settlement; this will increase to
7% in the event my claim results in more than one. (1) trial and/or an appeal of a trial. I
nderstand my attorney may need to incur reasonable expenses in properly handling my claim
including, but not limited to, expenses such as accident reports, filing fees, court reporters fees,
video fees, records fees, and physician fees. I understand those expenses will be taken out of my
settlement, in addition to-my-~attorney’s legal fee.

@J,%/ LAW OFEICES OF
1ent ‘

J

Client . v

MAS J. POPOVICH

Date: Date:

LAW OFFICES OF THOMAS J. POPOVICH, P.C.
3416 West Elm Street S

McHenry, Illinois 60050

815/344-3797

Exhibit

Witness: Hans Mast
Date:  6/25/20

Court Reporter: Barb Smith
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Exhibit
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) Dat: w2820
)SS Court Reporter: Barb Smith

COUNTY OF McHENRY )

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE TWENTY-SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
McHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS

PAUL DULBERG,
Plaintiff,

vs. No.: /2-,4/4/7&
DAVID GAGNON, Individually, and as
Agent of CAROLINE MCGUIRE and BILL
MCGUIRE, and CAROLINE MCGUIRE
and BILL MCGUIRE, Individually,

e e N e e S N e S N N S

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

NOW COMES the Plaintiff, PAUL DULBERG, ‘b_y his attorneys, LAW OFFICES OF
THOMAS J. POPOVICH, P.C., and complaining against fhe Defendants. DAVID GAGNON,
Individually, and as Agent of CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL McGUIRE, and CAROLINE
McGUIRE and BILL McGUIRE, individually, and states as follows:

Count I

Paul Dulberg vs. David Gagnon, individually, and as Agent of Caroline and Bill McGuire

1. On June 28, 2011, the Plaintiff, PAUL DULBERG, lived in the City of McHenry,
County of McHenry, Illinois.
2. On June 28, 2011, Defendants CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL McGUIRE

lived, controlled, managed and maintained a single family home located at 1016 W. Elder
g e 'g_‘, y . B
. ) . e ‘QINILNG ONIZE 1INV43Q
Avenue, in the City Ofgéci%%ggglg% of McHenry, Illinoify w3awo Nv ¥o q3ssinsia onias
§ GASE 1S HEREBY SET FOR SCHEDULING 3SYD THL NI L'INSIY AVW HVIddY OL 3uNTIv4e
FHIS RENGE IN GOURTROOM ON = WdWv =iy 0z
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3. On June 28, 2011, the Defendant, DAVID GAGNON, was living and/or staying at
his parent’s home at 1016 W. Elder Avenue, in the City of McHenry, County of McHenry,
Illinois.

4. On June 28, 2011, the Defendants, CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL McGUIRE
contracted, hired the Defendant, DAVID GAGNON, to cut down, trim and/or maintain the trees
and brush at their premises at 1016 W. Elder Avenue, in the City of McHenry, County of
McHenry, Illinois.

5. On June 28, 2011, and at the request and with the authority and permission of the
Defendants CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL McGUIRE, and for their benefit, the Defendant,
DAVID GAGNON, was working under their supervision and control while engaged in cutting,
trimming and maintaining trees and brush at the premises at 1016 W. Elder Avenue, in the City
of McHenry. County of McHenry, IHinois.

6. On June 28, 2011, as part of his work at the subject property, the Defendant,
DAVID GAGNON, was authorized, instructed, advised and permitted to use a chainsaw to assist
him in his work for Defendants, CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL McGUIRE, which was owned
by the McGuires.

7. On June 28, 2011, the Defendant, DAVID GAGNON, was under the supervision
and control of Defendants, CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL McGUIRE, and was working as
their apparent and actual agent, and was then acting and working in the scope of his agency for

Defendants, CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL McGUIRE.
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8. On June 28, 2011, and while the Defendant, DAVID GAGNON, was working in
the course and scope of his agency for Defendants, CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL
- McGUIRE, and was under their supervision and control, Defendant, DAVID GAGNON was in
use of a chainsaw while trimming a tree and branch.

0. On June 28, 2011, and while Defendant, DAVID GAGNON, was in use of a
chainsaw while trimming é tree and branch, Defendant, DAVID GAGNON, asked for and/or
requested the assistance of the Plaintiff, PAUL DULBERG, to hold the tree branch while
Defendant, DAVID GAGNON, trimmed the branch with the chainsaw.

10. On June 28, 2011, and while Defendant, DAVID GAGNON, was in sole control,
use and operation of the subject chainsaw, the chainsaw was caused to strike and injure the
Plaintiff, PAUL DULBERG.

1L At all relevant times. Defendants, CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL McGUIRE,
knew of Defendant, DAVID GAGNON’s use of the chainsaw in the presence of the Plaintiff,
PAUL DULBERG, and knew that such created a danger to the Plaintiff, PAUL DULBERG’s
safety.

12.  That at all relevant times, the Defendants, DAVID GAGNON, as agent of
CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL McGUIRE, owed a duty to use care and caution in his

operation of a known dangerous instrumentality.
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13. On June 28, 2011, the Defendant, DAVID GAGNON, was negligent in one or
more of the following ways:

a. Failed to maintain control over the operating of the chainsaw;

b. Failed to take precaution not to allow the chainsaw to move toward the Plaintiff,

PAUL DULBERG, so as to cause injury;
c. Failed to warn the Plaintiff, PAUL DULBERG, of the dangers existing from the
Defendant, DAVID GAGNON?’s inability to control the chainsaw;

d. Failed to keep a proper distance from the Plaintiff, PAUL DULBERG, while

operating the chainsaw;

e. Otherwise was negligent in operation and control of the chainsaw.

4. That as a proximate result of the Defendant’s negligence, the Plaintiff, PAUL
DULBERG, was injured externally; he has experienced and will in the future experience pain
and suffering; he has been permanently scarred and/or disabled; and has become obligated for
large sums of money for medical bills and will in the future become obligated for additional
sums of money for medical care, and has lost time from work and/or from earning wages due to
such injury.

15.  That at the above time and date, the Defendant’s negligence can be inferred from
the circumstances of the occurrence as the instrument of the injury was under the control of the
Defendant and therefore, negligence can be presumed under the doctrine of Res Ipsa Loquitur.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, PAUL DULBERG, demands judgment against Defendants,
DAVID GAGNON, and CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL McGUIRE in an amount in excess of

$50,000.00, plus costs of this action.
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Count II

Paul Dulberg vs. Caroline McGuire and Bill McGuire

1 - 15. That the Plaintiff,_‘PAUL DULBERG, restates and realleges paragraphs 1 ﬂuough
14, in Count I, above, as paragraphs 1 through 15 of Count II, as if fully alleged herein.

16.  That at all relevant times; the Defendants, CARQLINE McGUIRE and BILL
McGUIRE, owned, controlled, m%lintained and supervised the premises whereat the accident to
the Plaintiff, PAUL DULBERG, occurred.

17. That at all relevant times, the Defendants, CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL
McGUIRE, were in control of and had the right to advise, instruct and demand that the
Defendant, DAVID GAGNON, act or work in a safe and reasonable manner.

18. That at all relevant times, the Defendant, DAVID GAGNON, was acting as the
agent, actual and apparent, of Defendants, CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL McGUIRE, and
was acting ét their request and in their best interests and to their benefit as in a joint enterprise.

19. That at ail relevant times, Defendants, CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL
McGUIRE, knew DAVID GAGNON was operating a chainsaw with the assistance of the
Plaintiff, PAUL DULBERG, and had the right to discharge or terminate the Defendant, DAVID
GAGNON?’s work for any reason.

20 That at all relevant times, Defendants, CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL
McGUIRE, owed a duty to supervise and control Defendant, DAVID GAGNON’s activities on
the property so as not to create a unreasonable hazard to others, including the Plaintiff, PUAL

DULBERG.

POP 001167





21.  On June 28,2011, the Defeﬁdants, CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL McGUIRE,
were negligent in one or more of the following ways:
a. Failed to control operatién of the chainsaw;
b. Failed to take precaution not to allow the chainsaw to move toward the Plaintiff,
PAUL DULBERG, so as to cause injury;

c. Failed to warn the Plaintiff, PAUL DULBERG, of the dangers existing from the
Defendant’s inability to control the chainsaw;

d. Failed to keep the chainsaw a proper distance from the Plaintiff, PAUL
DULBERG, while operating the chainsaw;

€. Otherwise was negligent in operation and control of the chainsaw.

22.  Thatasa proxima.te result of the Defendant’s negligénee, the Plaintiff, PAUL
DULBERG, was injured externally; he has experienced and will in the future experience pain
and suffering; he has been permanently scarred and/or disabled; and has become obligated for
large sums of money for medical bills and will in the future become obligated for additional
sums of money for medical care, and has lost time from work and/or from earning wages due to

such injury.
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WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, PAUL DULBERG, demands judgment against Defendants,
CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL McGUIRE, in an amount in excess of $50,000.00, plus costs

of this action.

LAW OFFICES OF THOMAS J..POPOVICH, P.C.

e

One of the Attorneys for Plaintiff

Hans A. Mast

LAW OFFICES OF THOMAS J. POPOVICH, P.C.
3416 West Elm Street

Lake, Illinois 60050

(815) 344-3797

ARDC No. 06203684
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
’ )SS
COUNTY OF McHENRY )

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE TWENTY-SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
McHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS '

PAUL DULBERG,
Plaintiff,

vs. No.:
DAVID GAGNON, Individually, and as
Agent of CAROLINE MCGUIRE and BILL
MCGUIRE, and CAROLINE MCGUIRE
and BILL MCGUIRE, Individually,

Defendants.
AFFIDAVIT
I, HANS A. MAST, being first duly sworn on oath, depose and state as follows:

L. That I am one of the attorneys responsible for the prosecution of the above-entitled
case.

2. That on behalf Plaintiff, PAUL DULBERG, I am hereby requesting money damages
in an amount not to exceed $50,000.00, together with the costs of this action, against each of the
above-named Defendants.

FURTHER, Affiant sayeth naught.

LAW OFFICES OF T S J. POPOVICH, P.C.
Hans A. Mast
LAW OFFICES OF THOMAS J. POPOVICH, P.C.
3416 West Elm Street
McHenry, Illinois 60050
(815) 344-3797
ARDC No. 06203684
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MEMORANDUM | ;<\~°/\@/r M
TO: arla, Diana and Alarie
FROM:
DATE: " December 5,2011

SUBJECT: PAUL DULBERG - NEW CLIENT

On December 1, 2011, I met Paul Dulberg and his mother, concerning a recent injury that Paul
suffered at a friend's house due to a chainsaw accident onf June 28, 2011. Paul was referred to our
office by a former client, Hubert McArtor. Paul had previously been with Francisco Botto in
Woodstock but they rejected the case. He did sign a contract with Botto but we have correspondence
in the file that they rejected him and sent him away. They did not refer him to us. Apparently, they
rejected the case because they did not think that they wopld be able to prove that the defendant was
more than 50% negligent causing the accident. I disagree.

Paul's contact information is as follows: Exhibit

Witness: Hans Mast

Paul Dulberg Date:  6/25/20

Court Reporter: Barb Smith

4606 Hayden Court
McHenry, IL 60051
847/497-4250

SSN 323-76-4001
DOB 03-19-70
DOA 06/28/11

Paul describes that he was at a friend's ouse, Caroline and Bill McGuire who live/at 1016 W. Elder

to see if he wanted the wood for firewood. Dave asked Paul to hold some tree limbs while he cut
them up. He had held two tree branches previously and then about an hour after he arrived he was
holding another branch and Dave suddenly swung around with the chainsaw rising it in the air and
cutting his Paul's forearm severely while holding on to a branch. Paul said that the chainsaw went
about 40% through his forearm. Dave took him immediately to NIMC where they stitched him up.
It was a very deep and open wound. Unfortunately, he did not take any photos of the wound.
Instead, he followed up with his family physician, Dr. Frank Sek on Route 120 in McHenry who
removed the stitches about a week later. Dr. Sek thought there was going to be possible nerve
damage due to his arm being very painful. About two weeks later he went to a doctor at the
Associates in Neurology in Libertyville and they took and EMG test which found that there were
some branch nerves that had been severed which may be the cause of his ongoing pain. They
thought that the pain was probably more ligamentous and they referred him to Dr. Paul Papierski,
phone 847/247-0547. That was in August. He has not returned to see Dr. Papierski because
apparently they needed an MRI and he did not have money to pay for an MRI. I urged him to return
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to see Dr. Papierski and to have the MRI done even if they have to hold a lien on our case. His arm
is very painful when he lifts anything and he drops things continuously. He said that he will follow
up with Dr. Papierski and advise me further what needs to be done as far as treatment.

At the time of the accident he was not employed but he had been just recently hired when the
accident occurred by AMS Screw Products in Spring Grove. He was going to earn $12 an hour for
40 hours per week. He had talked to Karen over at AMS Screw and she agreed to hire him, but
unfortunately, he was injured before he could start work. Their phone number is 732/545-8888x231.

The central issue in my view in this case is whether there is insurance coverage. Since the son was
not living with the McGuire's at the time of the accident, it may be that David Gagnon is not going
to be insured for the accident. However, Paul and his mother advised me that Dave also had a home
and lived at 39010 90" Place in Genoa City, Wisconsin. Therefore, hopefully he has homeowner's
insurance that will apply to this claim as well as med-pay coverage to help pay for the MRI that
needs to be done.

The McGuire's were insured by:

Auto Owners Insurance
Tom Malatia, Adjuster

6000 Tallgate Road, Suite D
Elgin, IL 60123
847/587-3077
847/531-5420
847/531-8063x3808 gen. #
Claim No. 13-2779-11

By copy of this memo, I ask Alarie to set up a new file.
By copy of this memo, I ask Marla to order the medical records and bills from NIMC, Dr. Frank Sek

and Associates in Neurology in Libertyville. Please also diary the 1 and 2 year SOL deadlines in this
case.

Thanks,

Hans

SAMalntDULBERG, PAUL\M A ¢ new client 12-5-11.wpd
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The Law Offices of Thomas J. Popéwich PCr

f

3416 W. ELM STREET ADYE )
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TELEPHONE: 815.344.3797 4
FACSIMILE: 815.344.5280

THoMAS J. PorPovICH

Hans A. Mast www.popovichlaw.com JMARK;' ;{OGG
ANS A. AMES P. Tutas
Jorn A. KORNAK ROBERT J. LUMBER

THERESA M. FREEMAN

October 22, 2013
VIA FACSIMILE: 815/226-7701
Ronald A. Barch
Cicero, France, Barch & Alexander, PC
6323 E. Riverside Blvd.
Rockford, IL 61114

RE:  Paul Dulberg vs. David Gagnon, Caroline McGuire and Bill McGuire
McHenry County Case: 12 LA 178

Dear Mr. Barch:

I recently discussed this claim with my client. We are prepared to let your clients out of the case for
$7,500 at this point. Please advise how you wish to proceed.

Thank you for your cooperation.

Very truly yours,

smq

Exhibit

Witness: Hans Mast
Date:  6/25/20

Court Reporter: Barb Smith

WAUKEGAN OFFICE

210 NORTH MARTIN LUTHER

KiNG JR, AVENUE

POP 000192 WAUKEGAN, IL 60085
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Thzrysa M. FREEMAN

October 22, 2013
VIA FACSIMILE: 815/226-7701
Ronald A. Barch
Cicero, France, Barch & Alexander, PC

6323 E. Riverside Blvd,
Rockford, IL 61114

RE:  Paul Dulberg vs. David Gagnon, Caroline McGuire and Bill McGuire
MecHenry County Case: 12 LA 178

Dear Mr. Barch:

1recently discussed this claim with my client. We are prepared to let your clients out of the case for
$7.500 at this point. Please advise how you wish to proceed.

Thank you for your cooperation.

Very truly yours,
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XFINITY Connect -~ .
‘ ’ XFINITY Connect hansmast@comcast.ne
+ Font Size -
Re: Medical depositions
From : Hans Mast <hansmast@comcast.net> Wed, Oct 30, 2013 02:34 PV

Subject : Re: Medical depositions
To : Paul Dulberg <pdulberg@comcast.net>

Cc : Hans Mast <hansmast@comcast.net>

Paul, here are my thoughts regarding your case. There are two issues. The first liability, or whether Mr. Gagnon is liable for your injury. If
he is not proven liable, then it does not matter how badly you were hurt since he will not be found responsible for your damages. The
second issue is your damages, or to what extent you were injured due to Mr, Gagnon&rsquo;s acts.

Both of these issues are strongly contested in your case.

As to liability, there were no witnesses to the accident. So, whether Mr. Gagnon will be held responsible for your damages is uncertain
and a gamble. That is because it is your word against his word. Our argument is that you were simply holding a limb when he caused the
chain saw to strike you. His argument is that you moved your arm in the path of the chain saw unexpectedly. If the jury determines that
we did not prove your "version" of the accident, then they can find against you and in favor of Mr. Gagnon at trial.

As to damages, the issue is complicated. That is because your treating physicians do not all agree on exactly what injury you suffered or
whether your had a fully recovery or not.

Dr. Talerico at MidAmerica Hand and Shoulder, saw you twice. The first time was in December, six months after your injury. He was not
supportive of your claim In most respects. He didn&rsquo;t really feel there was anything wrong with you - as to the forearm. He said that
you complained mostly of pain radiating down the forearm from the laceration site with numbness and tingling. On exam he noted no
tenderness and it was mostly a normal presentation. Strength was good. He did not see any nerve problem. He prescribed physical
therapy due to a muscular sort of symptomology - not nerve related. Apparently you did only 2 sessions of therapy and returned January,
2012. No new complaints at the time. The EMG was normal. He did not believe you were disabled. He continued you on therapy. He saw
no evidence of nerve problems. The only symptoms were subjective - not represented by any abnormal exam finding.

Dr. Sagerman has also been deposed. I will summarize his testimony for your soon. His was more favorable, but still limited in what he
related to the chain saw accident. Apparently he does not believe you presently have any symptoms relatable to the chain saw injury.
Think about these issues. I will provide you Dr. Sagerman&rsquo;s summary soon.

Hans

----- Original Message -----From: Paul Dulberg <pdulberg@comcast.net>To: Hans Mast <hansmast@comcast.net>Sent: Fri, 25 Oct 2013
13:18:24 -0000 (UTC)Subject: Medical depositions

Morning Hans,Wanted to touch base this morning because the call from you about something not being medically linked has been on my
mind.I'm not sure what was said during that deposition with the drs that prompted the call but I have been thinking about what it could
be. Most likely it was the right elbow procedure. During my deposition I remember being asked if the two were linked and I answered
yes. Let me explain my answer to you. If the chainsaw had not gone through my arm then the procedure on my elbow wouldn't have
happened. That procedure was exploratory to find what was bothering the arm from the chainsaw. Upon opening up the arm they did
find some compressions which from my understanding was nothing unusual for a male of my age and very well may or may not have
happened during my retreat from the chainsaw when I ended up half way across the yard on the ground. Incidental finding or not it still
would not have been found if I hadn't had the chainsaw incident. So as I see it they are linked good or bad and cannot be separated. The
exploratory procedure was to find and possibly fix issues relating to the chainsaw incident. They also removed a ton of scar tissue in the
forearm on the same day during the same exploratory procedure that was a direct result of the chainsaw.

Hope this helps explain things better.Let me know, Thanks,Paul

Paul Dulberg847-497-4250Sent from my iPad

Exhibit

Witness: Hans Mast
Date:  6/25/20

Court Reporter: Barb Smith
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From: Paul Dulberg <pdulberg@comcast.net>
Subject: Fwd: 3 pm meeting
Date: December 28, 2016 10:39:25 AM CST
To: paul_dulberg@comcast.net

From: Paul Dulberg <pdulberg@comcast.net>
Date: November 5, 2013 at 9:46:33 AM CST
To: Hans Mast <hansmast@comcast.net>
Subject: Re: 3 pm meeting

Hans,
Below is a link to an article talking about the integration of digital cameras at the centegra facilities.
A friend of mine who works at NIMC for well over a decade just replied to me and she says everything is recorded and available

exactly for the purposes we discussed.

http://www.sdmmag.com/articles/print/success-stories-in-integrating-video-surveillance

Paul Dulberg
847-497-4250
Sent from my iPad

On Nov 5, 2013, at 9:00 AM, Hans Mast <hansmast@comcast.net> wrote:

no chance, sorry

----- Original Message -----

From: Paul Dulberg <pdulberg@comcast.net>

To: Hans Mast <hansmast@comcast.net>

Sent: Mon, 04 Nov 2013 22:54:28 -0000 (UTC)

Subject: Re: 3 pm meeting

Also,

Any chance the hospital (centegra) has video of their parking lots?
This could disprove David's claim of talking before entering the ER.
Thanks,

Paul

Paul Dulberg

847-497-4250

Sent from my iPad

On Nov 4, 2013, at 11:49 AM, Hans Mast <hansmast@ comcast.net> wrote:

No need to bring anything, your mom is welcome...
----- Original Message -----

From: Paul Dulberg <pdulberg@comcast.net>

To: Hans Mast <hansmast@comcast.net>

Sent: Mon, 04 Nov 2013 17:31:20 -0000 (UTC)
Subject: 3 pm meeting

Hi Hans,

Curious if | should bring anything with me at 3 pm?
Mind if my Mom comes along?

Thanks and see you soon,

Paul

Paul Dulberg

847-497-4250

Sent from my iPad Exhibit

Witness: Hans Mast
Date:  6/25/20

Court Reporter: Barb Smith

Dulberg 001531
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XFINITY Connect hansmast@comcast.ne
+ Font Size -
Re: Dave's Best and oldest friend John
From : Paul Dulberg <pdulberg@comcast.net> Tue, Nov 19, 2013 02:29 AV

Subject : Re: Dave's Best and oldest friend John
To : Hans Mast <hansmast@comcast.net>

I still don't get how they don't feel responsible for work done on their property by their own son that ended up cutting through 40% of
my arm.

Perhaps their negligence is the fact that they didn't supervise the work close enough but they did oversee much of the days activity with
David. Just because Dave was doing the work doesn't mean they were not trying to tell their kid what to do. They told him plenty of times
throughout the day what to do. How is that not supervising?

Paul

Paul Du\berg
847-497-4250
Sent from my iPad

> On Nov 18, 2013, at 8:07 PM, Hans Mast <hansmast@comcast.net> wrote:

>

> Paul whether you like it or not they don't have a legal liability for your injury because they were not directing the work. So if we do not
accept their 5000 they will simply file a motion and get out of the case for free. That's the only other option Is letting them file motion
getting out of the case

>

> Sent from my iPhone

>

>> On Nov 18, 2013, at 7:40 PM, Paul Dulberg <pdulberg@comcast.net> wrote:

>>

>> Only 5, That's not much at all.

>> Is this a take it or leave it or do we have any other options?

>>

>> If you want a negligence case for the homeowners ask what happened immediately after the accident.

>>

>> Neither of them offered me any medical assistance nor did either of them call 911 and all Carol could think of besides calling David an
idiot was calling her homeowners insurance.

>>

>> They all left me out in the yard screaming for help while they were busy making sure they were covered.,

>>

>> She even went as far as to finally call the Emergency Room after I was already there just to tell me she was covered.

>>

>> How selfish are people when they worry about if their insured over helping the person who was hurt and bleeding badly in their yard.
>>

>> I'm glad she got her answer and had to share it with me only to find out her coverage won't even pay the medical bills.

>>
>> I'm not happy with the offer.

>>

>> As far as John Choyinski, he knows he has to call you and said he will tomorrow.

>>

>> Paul

>>

>> Paul Dulberg Exhibit

>> 847-497-4250 N

>> Sent from my iPad Witness: Hans Mast
55 Date:  6/25/20 ‘

>>> On Nov 18, 2013, at 1:28 PM, Hans Mast <hansmast@comcast.net> wrote: ———
>>>

>>> Im waiting to hear from John. I tried calling him last week, but no one answered.

>>>

>>> In addition, the McGuire's atty has offered us (you) $5,000 in full settlement of the claim against the McGuires only. As we
discussed, they have no liability in the case for what Dave did as property owners. So they will likely get out of the case on a motion at

httn-//weh mail cameact net/hinrintmeceace?2iBQRN0PISY 11907012
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some point, so my suggestion is to take the $5,000 now. You probably won't see any of it due to liens etc. but it will offset the costs
deducted from any eventual recovery....

>>>

>>> Let me know what you think..

>>>

>>> Hans

>>> -meee Original Message -----

>>> From: Paul Dulberg <pdulberg@comcast.net>

>>> To: Hans Mast <hansmast@comcast.net>

>>> Sent: Fri, 15 Nov 2013 22:41:26 -0000 (UTC)

>>> Subject: Dave's Best and oldest friend John

>>> Hans,

>>> Just spoke with John Choyinski again about talking with you.

>>> I am leaving your number with him as he has agreed to talk with you about David Gagnon.

>>> I believe he will try and call sometime tomorrow.

>>> Paul

>>> Ch and I know that nothing that happened right after the incident makes any difference as to the validity of the injuries but David's
conduct immediately after the incident does show his lack of moral values for other humans and what he was willing and was not willing
to do to help me get medical help. For his actions towards me or any other human being is enough to sue the shit out him alone. It is the
things that happened afterwards that upset me the most.

>>> Sorry for the rant but Dave was a complete ass all the way and deserves this.

>>> Paul Dulberg

>>> 847-497-4250

>>> Sent from my iPad
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CICERO, FRANCE, BARCH & ALEXANDER, P.C.
A Professional Corporation
Attorneys at Law
6323 EAST RIVERSIDE BOULEVARD
ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61114

Paul. R. CicEro TEL: (815) 226-7700
Joun W. FRANCE FAX: (815) 226-7701
RonALD A. BarcH

CHARLES P, ALEXANDER November ]8, 2013

CHANTEL R. BIELSKIS
ANnDREW T. SmiTu

Attorney Hans A. Mast

Law Offices of Thomas J. Popovich, PC -
3416 West Elm Street

McHenry, IL 60050

Case: Paul Dulberg v. David Gagnon, Caroline McGuire and Bill McGuire
(McHenry County Case No. 12 LA 178)

Issued For Settlement Purposes Only
Dear Mr. Mast::

[ am writing to confirm our telephorie conversationearlier this morning, wherein I
advised you that 1 was authorized to propose settlement of Mr. Dulberg’s claim against Carolyn
and Bill McGuire for a lump-sum total of $5,000.00. The settlement would of course be
contingent upon customary settlement documents, 1ncludmg a release, a good faith settlement
finding and dismissal. :

Pursuant to your request, I searched my file materials for lien notices. The only notice of
lien contained in my file at this time is your Attorney’s Lien (enclosed). I have asked my contact
at Auto-Owners Insurance Company to confirm no lien notices have arrived on his end since Mr.
Dulberg’s case was assigned to me for the defense of Mr. and Mrs. McGuire. [ do not
anticipating any lien notices, but just wanted to be safc.

I understand that you intend to run my settlement proposal by Mr. Dulberg. 1 look
forward to hearing from you once you have had a chance to confer with him.

Very truly yours,

Cl ~. .RONALD.A.BARCH . -
RB:mj\37ltr HAM

cc - Tom Malatia (Claim No. 13-2779-11) Exhibit
Encl.

Witness: Hans Mast

Date:  6/25/20

Court Reporter: Barb Smith

POP 000667






MEMORANDUM

TO: File

FROM: Hans
DATE:November 20, 2013
SUBJECT: PAUL DULBERG

On November 20, 2013, I met with Paul and his friend to discuss the McGuire’s $5,000 settlement
offer and other issues with regard to this case. I also told them there is a dispute as to McGuire’s
liability, as they maintain that they were not directing Dave’s work. Paul maintains that the
McGuire’s controlled everything that Dave was doing. Itold him that that’s not what the evidence
seems to show. I told them the McGuire’s could possibly get out of the case on motion, and the
alternative is to accept the $5,000 offer. Paul wants to read the deps of the McGuire’s and also wants
us to order his and Dave’s dep to review. I agreed to do so.

By copy of this memo, I ask Sheila to order copies of Paul and Dave’s deps. I think defense counsel
ordered them, so all we need to do is get copies. Please let me know if the copies have not been
already ordered so we don’t have to order the originals.

Thanks,

Hans

Exhibit

Witness: Hans Mast
Date:  6/25/20

Court Reporter: Barb Smith
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MEMORANDUM
TO: - File
FROM: Hans
DATE: December 20, 2013

SUBJECT: PAUL DULBERG

On December 18, 2013, I called Paul today after an email and we had a long discussion about the
McGuire’s liability and he seemed to concede and understand that probably based on the testimony

there is nothing we can prove against the McGurie’s and he is willing to take their $5,000 settlement
offer.

Exhibit

Witness: Hans Mast
Date:  6/25/20

Court Reporter: Barb Smith
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The Law Offices of Thomas J. Popovich P.C.
3416 W. ELM STREET

McHenry, ILLivois 60050 BN '\‘/{E
TELEPHONE: 815.344.3797 i Pﬁ? i D

FacsMiLE: 815.344.5280
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THOMAS J. POPOVICH . MAark J. VoGG
. hlaw.

Hans A. MAsT Www-popovichiaw.com JAMES P, TUTAJ

JoHN A. KORNAK RoOBERT J. LUMBER

December 26, 2013 THERESA M. FREEMAN

VIA FACSIMILE: 815/226-7701
Ronald A. Barch

Cicero, France, Barch & Alexander, PC
6323 E. Riverside Blvd.

Rockford, IL 61114

RE:  Paul Dulberg vs. David Gagnon, Caroline McGuire and Bill McGuire
McHenry County Case: 12 LA 178

Dear Mr. Barch:

Please be advised that we will accept your $5,000 settlement offer on behalf of you clients, Caroline
and Bill McGuire. Please forward your settlement agreement to my attention. Also, please present
a motion for good faith finding with regard to the settlement.

As I understand it, you have no liens on the file other than our attorney’s lien.

Thank you for your cooperation.

Very truly yours,

H MAST

smq

Exhibit

Witness: Hans Mast
Date:  6/25/20

Court Reporter: Barb Smith

WAUKEGAN OFFICE

210 NORTH MARTIN LUTHER

KNG JR. AVENUE
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE 228° JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF McHENRY '

PAUL DULBERG, )
)

Plaintiff, ) CaseNo. 12LA 178
)
VS, )
)
DAVID GAGNON, Individually, and as )
Agent of CAROLINE MCGUIRE and BILL )
MCGUIRE, and CAROLINE MCGUIRE )
and BILL MCGUIRE, Individually, )
)
Defendants. )

ANSWER TO PLAINTIFF’S INTERROGATORIES TO
DEFENDANTS BILL McGUIRE AND CAROLYN McGUIRE

TO:  Paul Dulberg
c/o Attorney Hans A. Mast
Law Offices of Thomas J. Popovich
3416 West Elm Street
McHenry, IL 60050

Defendants, BILL McGUIRE AND CAROLYN McGUIRE (improperly named Caroline),
by and through their attorneys, Cicero, France, Barch & Alexander, PC, and for their Answer to

Plaintiff's Interrogatories, state as follows:

1. State the full name of the defendant(s) answering, as well as your current residence address,
date of birth, marital status, and social security number, and, if different, give the full name,
as well as the current residence address, date of birth, marital status, and social security
number of the individual(s) signing these Answers.

ANSWER: William “Bill” McGuire Carolyn McGuire
1016 W. Elder Avenue 1016 W. Elder Avenue
McHenry, I 60051 McHenry, IL 60051
Married: Carolyn Married: Bill
DOB: July 29, 1952 November 26, 1946

Defendants object to providing Social Security Numbers. Such information
is highly sensitive and private and is furthermore itrelevant to any issues in
the pending lawsuit.

Exhibit

Witness: Hans Mast
Date:  6/25/20

Court Reporter: Barb Smith
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State the full name and current residence address of each person who witnessed or claims to
have witnessed the accident to the Plaintiff on the premises as described in the complaint,

ANSWER: David Gagnon " Paul Dulberg
39010 90" Place 4606 Hayden
Genoa City, W1 53128 McHenry, IL 60051

State the full name and current residence address of each person who witnessed or claims to
have witnessed the work and/or conditions existing as described in the complaint at the
location of the accident on the date of the accident described.

ANSWER:  See answer to Interrogatory No. 2.

State the name and address of the person(s) or entity that owned the property premises
whereat the accident occurred as alleged, as of the date in question,

ANSWER: Bill and Carolyn McGuire
1016 W. Elder Avenue
McHenry, IL 60051

State the name and address of the person(s) or entity that was involved in the work and/or
maintenance of the exterior of the premises as alleged on the date in question,

ANSWER:  See response to Interrogatory No. 2.
State the name and address of the person(s) or entity that decided or chose to undertake the
work and/or maintenance of the exterior of the premises as alleged on the date in question,

including chain saw use and activity.

ANSWER:  See response to Interrogatory No. 2.

State the name and address of the person(s) or entity that was to supervise or oversee the
* work and/or maintenance at the exterior of the premises as alleged on the date in question
including chain saw use and activity.

ANSWER: ~ See response to Interrogatory No. 2.
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State the full name and current residence address of each person, who was present and/or
claims to have been present at the scene immediately before, at the time of, and/or
immediately after said occurrence.

ANSWER:

Before:

At Time Of
Occurrence;

After:

William “Bill” McGuire Carolyn McGuire

1016 W. Elder Avenue 1016 W. Elder Avenue
McHenry, IL 60051 McHenry, IL 60051
David Gagnon Paul Dulberg

39010 90™ Place 4606 Hayden

Genoa City, W1 53128 McHenry, IL 60051
David Gagnon Paul Dulberg

39010 90™ Place 4606 Hayden

Genoa City, W1 53128 McHenry, IL 60051
William “Bill” McGuire Carolyn McGuire
1016 W. Elder Avenue ' 1016 W. Elder Avenue
McHenry, IL 60051 McHenry, IL 60051
David Gagnon Paul Dulberg

39010 90™ Place 4606 Hayden

Genoa City, WI 53128 McHenry, IL 60051

State the name and address of each witness that knows or claims to know the circumstances
of the alleged accident, how it occurred or how the Plaintiff became injured — as alleged in

the Complaint.

ANSWER:

On information and belief, David Gagnon and Paul Dulberg were present at
the time of the alleged occurrence and therefore know the circumstances
surrounding the occurrence. Answering further, Defendants Bill McGuire
and Carolyn McGuire were not present at the time of the occurrence but
knew that David Gagnon and Paul Dulberg were present on the date of the
occurrence.  From conversations with David Gagnon, the answering
Defendants believe that Mr. Gagnon and Mr. Dulberg had been cutting logs
and tree branches into smaller sections without incident. While in the
process of cutting tree branches Paul Dulberg unexpectedly and without
warning moved his right arm directly in the path of the running chain saw.
Investigation continues.
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10.

1.

With respect to the chain saw that was being operated on the premises at the time of the
alleged injury, state as follows:

a. Who was operating the chain saw at the time of the Plaintiff’s alleged injury;

b. Who owned the chain saw at the time of Plaintiff’s alleged injury;

C. yvl}o- requested that the chain saw be used to perform work at the time of Pla'mtiff‘»s
injury.

ANSWER:

a. On information and belief, Dav1d Gagnon was operating the chain saw at the time

Mr. Dulberg was injured.

b. Bill McGuire was the owner of the chain saw on the date of the occurrence.

c. David Gagnon had Bill McGuire’s permission to use the chain saw.

With respect to David Gagnon’s experience in use of a chain saw prior to the date of the
alleged accident, state as follows:

a. How many times had David Gagnon operated the same or similar chain saw prior to
the date of alleged accident;

b. What formal training did David Gagnon receive in use or operation of a chain saw
prior to the occurrence alleged;

C. Who, if any, (names and addresses) trained David Gagnon in use or operation of a
chain saw prior to the occurrence.

ANSWER:

a. Objection. This interrogatory is better directed to David Gagnon. Answering
subject to objection, and to the best of the answering parties’ knowledge, David
Gagnon has used chain saws in the past but the answering parties do not known how
often he has used chain saws in the past.

b. Objection. This interrogatory is better directed to David Gagnon. Answering
subject to objection, the answering parties do not know whether David Gagnon has
been formally trained the use or operation of a chain saw. Answering further, the
answering parties are aware that Mr. Gagnon has used chain saws many times in the
past and he appears/appeared to know what he is doing. s
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12.

13.

14.

C. Objection. This interrogatory is better directed to David Gagnon. Answering
subject to objection, the answering party do now know whether or by whom David
Gagnon was trained in the use of chain saws. Answering further, the answering
parties are aware that Mr. Gagnon has used chain saws many times in the past and
he appears/appeared to know what he is doing.

What was the scope of work or task David Gagnon was engaged in with use of the chain
saw at or about the time of the alleged accident.

ANSWER:

To the extent “scope of work” or “engaged” constitute legal conclusions, the
answeting Defendants object to Interrogatory No. 12. Answering subject to
objection, at the time of the alleged occurrence, the answering Defendants were in
the process of replacing an old shed on their property. Paul Dulberg helped David
Gagnon tear down the old shed. The answering Defendants further believe that Mr.
Dulberg took the components of the old shed to his property for eventual
. reassembly. On the date of the occurrence, Mr. Dulberg was helping David Gagnon
take down several trees to make room for a new shed. On information and belief,
prior to the occurrence Mr. Gagnon and Mr. Dulberg had been cutting logs and tree
branches into smaller sections without incident. While in the process of cutting tree
branches Paul Dulberg unexpectedly and without warning moved his right arm
directly in the path of the running chain saw. Answering further, the answering
Defendants did not engage, hire or pay either individual for their activities on site.
Nor did either answering Defendant dictate, control or otherwise supervise the

methods and means by which Mr. Gagnon and Mr. Dulberg performed the tree and
branch cutting at issue.

Who (names and addresses) requested or chose to engage Gagnon in the “task” of use and
operation of the chain saw at or about the time of the alleged accident.

ANSWER:

To the extent the words “chose” and “engage” constitute legal conclusions, the
answering Defendants object to Interrogatory No. 13. Answering subject to
objection, David Gagnon undertook the tree cutting and trimming in question as a
favor to his parents. He was not engaged, hired or paid for the activities in question.

What instructions or guidance, if any, was given to Gagnon prior to Plaintiffs alleged
injury/accident with regard to how he was to perform the chain saw work at the premises.

ANSWER: See response to Interrogatory No. 11,
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16.

Were you (Defendant) covered under any policy of insurance at the time of the occurrence.
If so, were you named or covered under any policy, policy, or policies, of liability insurance
effective on the date of said occurrence, and: State the name of each such company or
companies, the policy number of numbers, the effective period(s) occurrence, including
umbrella or excess insurance coverage, property damage and medical payment coverage.

ANSWER: Yes.

Auto-Owners Insurance Company

Policy No. 48-010-965-01

Eff:. May9,2011 thru May 9, 2012

Personal Liability (Each Occurrence): $300,000.00
Medical Payments (Each Person): $1,000.00

Do you have any information:

(@)

(b)

©

@

That any plaintiff was, within the 5 years immediately prior to said occurrence,
confined in a hospital and/or clinic, treated by a physician and/or other health
professional, or x-rayed for any reason other than person injury? If so, state each
plaintiff so involved, the name and address of each such hospital and/or clinic,

physician, technician and/or other health care professional, the approximate date of

such confinement or service and state the reason for such confinement or service;

That any plaintiff has suffered any serious personal injury and/or illness prior to the
date of said occurrence? If so, state each plaintiff so involved, state when, where
and how he or she was injured and/or ill and describe the injuries and/or illness
suffered;

That any plaintiff has suffered any serious personal injury and/or illness since the
date of said occurrence? If so, state each plaintiff so involved, state when, where
and how he or she was injured and/or ill and describe the injuries and/or illness
suffered;

That any plaintiff has ever filed any other suit for his or her own personal injuries?
If so, state each plaintiff so involved, state the court, and caption in which filed, the
year filed, the title and docket number of said case.

ANSWER:

On information and belief, the answering parties believe that Paul Dulberg was
involved in a motor vehicle accident that resulted in a shoulder injury of some sort.
The answering parties do not know of any other details about the auto accident or
injuries, if any.

See answer to Interrogatory No. 16(a).

No.
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17.

18.

19,

20.

21.

Were any photographs, movies and/or videotapes taken of the scene of the ocourrence or of
the persons involved? If so, state the date or dates on which such photographs, movies
and/or videotapes were taken, the subject thereof, who now has custody of them, the name,
address and occupation and employer of the person taking them.

ANSWER:  None, other than those furnished as part of Plaintiff's discovery response.

Have you (or anyone acting on your behalf) had any conversations with any person at any
time with regard to the manner in which the occurrence complained of occurred, or have
you overheard any statements made by any person at any time with regard to the injuries
complained of by plaintiff or the manner in which the occurrence complained of occurred?
If the answer to this Interrogatory is in the affirmative, state the following:

(a) The date or dates of such conversations and/or statements;

(b)  The place of such conversations and/or statements;

(¢}  Allpersons present for the for the conversations and/or statements;

(d)  The matters and things stated by the person in the conversations and/or statements;
(¢)  Whether the conversation was oral, written and/or recorded; and

® Who has possession of said statement if written and/or recorded.

ANSWER: (a) thru (f): See summary of oral communication received from David
Gagnon set forth in response to Interrogatory No. 9. Answering further, on
information and belief, a few weeks after the subject occurrence Paul
Dulberg did roofing work and moved heavy pieces of lumber for Mike
Thomas, 460 Walbeck Drive, Twin Lakes, WI 53181 (312/961-9655).
Investigation continues.

Do you know of any statements made by any person relating to the occurrence complained

'of by the plaintiff? If so, give the name and address of each such witness, the date of said

statement, and state whether such statement was written and/or oral.
ANSWER: See answers to Interrogatories No. 9 and 18.

State the name and address of each person having knowledge of Plaintiff’s activities on the
premises PRIOR to the accident in question.

ANSWER:  Paul Dulberg and David Gagnon.

State the name and address of each person having knowledge of Plaintiff’s activities on the
premises AFTER the accident in question.

ANSWER:  Paul Dulberg, David Gagnon, Bill McGuire and Carolyn McGuite.
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22.  Had the Plaintiff ever used or operated a chain saw on the premises or for the Defendant’s
prior to his alleged accident. If so, state the dates and times such occurred.

ANSWER:

Yes. In June 2011 Carolyn and Bill McGuire had a contractor take down a
large tree on their property. The contractor left the fallen limbs. Shortly
thereafter, Paul Dulberg brought his own chain saw down to the property.
He cut the limbs into logs. David Gagnon helped him cut and load the logs.

23.  Pursuant to Illinois Supreme Court Rule 213(f), provide the name and address of each
witness who will testify at trial, and state the subject of each witness’ testimony, giving the

following information:

(®

The subject matter on which the opinion witness is expected to testify;

(b)  The conclusions and/or opinions of the opinion witness and the basis therefore,
including reports of said witness, if any; '

(¢)  The qualifications of each opinion witness, including a Curriculum Vitae and/or
resume, if any; and

(d)  Identify any written reports of the opinion witness regarding this occurrence.

ANSWER:

Ilinois Supreme Court Rule 213(f)(1) — Lay Witnesses:

The answering party has not yet determined the identity of the witnesses that might be
called upon to offer lay witness testimony and opinions at trial. However, each of the following

individuals are possible trial witnesses:

a.

Paul Dulberg. Presumably, Mr. Kemp will testify about his age, education
and work experience. He may testify concerning all the events and
occurrences alleged in his complaint. He may also testify concerning his
state of health before the events and occurrences alleged in his complaint,
the injuries he attributes to the events and occurrences alleged in his
complaint, and his current state of health. Lastly, it is anticipated that he
will testify concerning all matters covered by his discovery responses and
discovery deposition, if taken. Investigation continues.

David Gagnon. The answering party does not know the specifics of Mr.
Gagnon’s potential trial testimony. Presumably, however, Mr. Gagnon
will testify about his age, education and work experience. He may testify
concerning his connection to Bill McGuire and Carolyn McGuire. He
may testify concerning the events and occurrences alleged in Plaintiff’s
Complaint, He may also testify concerning observations he made about
Mr. Dulberg’s state of health before the events and occurrences alleged in
Plaintiff’s Complaint, observations he made about the injuries Mr.
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Dulberg attributes to the events and occurrences alleged in Plaintiff’s
Complaint, and observations he made about Mr, Dulberg’s current state of
health, Lastly, it is anticipated that he will testify concerning all matters
covered by his discovery responses and discovery deposition, if taken,
Investigation continues.

Bill McGuire. If called upon to testify, Mr. McGuire will testify about his
age, education and work experience. He will testify concerning his
connection to David Gagnon and Carolyn McGuire. He may testify
concerning the circumstances surrounding the occurrence alleged in
Plaintif’s Complaint. He may also testify concerning observations he
made about Mr. Dulberg’s state of health immediately after and since the
occurrence alleged in Plaintiff’s Complaint, including observations he
made about the injuries Mr. Dulberg attributes to the occurrence alleged in
Plaintiff’s Complaint. Lastly, it is anticipated that he will testify
concerning all matters covered by his discovery responses and discovery
deposition, if taken. Investigation continues.

Carolyn McGuire. If called upon to testify, Mrs. McGuire will testify
about her age, education and work experience. She will testify concerning
her connection to David Gagnon and Bill McGuire. She may testify
concerning the circumstances surrounding the occurrence alleged in
Plaintiff’s Complaint. She may also testify concerning observations she
made about Mr. Dulberg’s state of health immediately after and since the
occurrence alleged in Plaintiff’s Complaint, including observations she
made about the injuries Mr. Dulberg attributes to the occurrence alleged in
Plaintiff's Complaint. Lastly, it is anticipated that she will testify
Eonceming all matters covered by her discovery responses and discovery
deposition, if taken. Investigation continues.

Mike Thomas. If called upon to testify, Mr. Thomas may testify about his
age, education and work experience. He may testify concerning his
connection to Paul Dulberg. He may also testify concerning observations
he made about Mr. Dulberg’s state of health after the occurrence alleged
in Plaintiff’s Complaint, including obsetvations he made of Mr. Dulberg
performing roofing work and moving lumber. Lastly, it is anticipated that
he will testify concerning all matters covered in his discovery deposition,
if taken. Investigation continues.

Investigation continues.
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24.

25.

26.

27.

Hinois Supreme Court Rule 213(f)(2) — Independent Opinion Witnesses.

To the extent any of the individuals disclosed above as potential Rule 213(f)(1)
witnesses also qualify for disclosure as an independent expert witness within the
meaning of Illinois Supreme Court Rule 213(£)(2), the responding Defendants
incorporate the above Rule 213(f)(1) disclosure as though fully and completely
set forth herein as a Rule 213(f)(2) disclosure. Answering further, the responding
Defendants further incorporate the identity and opinions of any medical provider
that treated Plaintiff for injuries he claims are associated with the occurrence
alleged in his Complaint. For additional detail, see the medical records and
materials produced by Plaintiff as part of his production response. Investigation
continues. '

Illinois Supreme Court Rule 213(£)(3) — Controlled Opinion Witnesses.

None at this time. Answering further, Defendants reserve the right to retain and

- disclose controlled opinion witnesses and will do so, if necessary, in accordance

with all applicable court orders and discovery rules.

List the names and addresses of all other persons (other than yourself and persdns heretofore
listed) who have knowledge of the facts of said occurrence and/or of the injuries and
damages claimed to have resulted therefrom.

ANSWER:  None, other than as disclosed in response to the interrogatories above.
Identify any statements, information and/or documents known to you and requested by any
of the foregoing Interrogatories which you claim to be work product or subject to any
common law or statutory privilege, and with respect to each Interrogatory, specify the legal
basis for the claim as requited by Supreme Court Rule 201(n).

ANSWER: None at this time.

State the name and address of each person at the premises (although maybe at different
location or not a witness to the incident) described at the time of the occurrence.

ANSWER:  See tesponse to Interrogatory Nos. 1 and 2.

Was the Plaintiff struck and injured by the chain saw while in operation on the date and time
alleged. If so, what caused the chain saw to strike the Plaintiff,

ANSWER:  On information and belief, yes. Answering further, Defendants were not
present at the time of the occurrence. See answer to Interrogatory No. 9.
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29.

30.

L
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Describe what, if any, of the Plaintiff’s conduct caused or contributed to his injury on the
date and time in question.

ANSWER:  See answer to Interrogatory No. 9.

Did the chain saw malfunction at any time during its use prior to Plaintiff’s alleged injury.
ANSWER: To the best of the answering parties’ knowledge, no.
Prior to Plaintiff’s alleged injury, was the subject chain saw operating safely and properly.

ANSWER: To the best of the answering parties lmowledge, yes.

CAROLYN MCGUIRE and BILL MCGUIRE,
Defendants, by their attorneys,
CICERO, FRANCE, BARCH & ALEXANDER, P.C.,

By

RONALD A. BARCH (6209572)

Cicero, France, Barch & Alexander, P.C. -
6323 East Riverside Blvd.

Rockford, IT, 61114

815/226-7700

815/226-7701 (fax)
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO )
BILL McGUIRE, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and states that he is one of the defendants

herein; that he has read the foregoing interrogatory answers; and that the interrogatory answers herein are

true, correct and complete to the best of his knowledge and belief.

\.G’UZ,Q 1/783% Y

Bill McGlire

Subscribed and sworn to before
me on the & TA day August, 2012.

Notary Publi&”
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO )
CAROLYN McGUIRE, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and states that she is one of the
defendants herein; that she has read the foregoing interrogatory answers; and that the interrogatory answers

herein are true, correct and complete to the best of her knowledge and belief.

Carolyn McGuire

Subscribed and sworn to before
me on the b~ day August, 2012,

OFFICIAL SEAL
RONALD A BARCH
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF 11 nois
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 08/07/14
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing document was

served upon:

Attorney Hans A. Mast

Law Offices of Thomas J. Popovich
3416 West Elm Street
McHenry, IL 60050

by depositing the same in the United States Post Office Box addressed as above, postage prepaid,

at Rockford, Illinois, at 5:00 o’clock p.m. on 9/ Y { [—

Cicero, France, Barch & Alexander, P.C.
6323 East Riverside Blvd.

Rockford, IL. 61114

815/226-7700

815/226-7701 (fax)
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STATE OF ILLINOIS : )

0245281968.1/SKO/ACCARDO/PAA.

) S8

COUNTY OF MCHENRY )
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE TWENTY-SECOND JUDICIAL i)ISTRICT

PAUL DULBERG,

McHENRYl COUNTY, ILLINOIS

Plaintiff(s), _ CASE NO. 12LA000178

VS.

DAVID GAGNON, Individually, and as
Agent of CAROLINE MCGUIRE and
BILL MCGUIRE, and CAROLINE

MCGUIRE and BILL MCGUIRE, Exhibit

Individuslly,

Defendant(s).

Witness: Hans Mast

Date:  6/25/20

Court Reporter: Barb Smith

ANSWERS TO CO-DEFENDANT INTERROGATORIES

The Defendant, DAVID GAGNON, in response to the Interrogatories propounded states

as follows:
1. State the full name, present residence address and birth date of the person answering these
Interrogatories.
ANSWER: David A. Gagnon, 39010 90™ Place, Genoa City Wisconsin 53128

DOB: 4/3/1697
2. State your marital status on the date of the occurrence in question and, if married, your
spouse's name and age on said date.
ANSWER: Married; Pamela Gagnon, 39010 90™ Place, Genoa City Wisconsin 53128,
3. State the full name and present or last known address (indicating which) of each person
who:

(a)  Witnessed or claims to have witnessed the occurrence in question.

(b)  Was present or claims to have been present at the scene immediately before said |

C occurrence. v

(¢)  Waspresent or claims to have been present immediately after said occurrence.

(@)  Otherwise has or claims to have any knowledge of the facts or possible causes of
the occurrence to include any damages or injuries alleged to have resulted from
said occurrence.

ANSWER: David A. Gagnon, 39010 90" Place, Genoa City Wisconsin 53128; Paul

Dulberg, 4606 Hayden Ct, McHenry Hlinois 60050; Carolyn McGuire, 1016 W. Eldks

]

8
Dull®
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Avenue, McHenry Hlinois 60051; Wllllam McGulre, 1016 W. Elder Avenue, McHenry
Iltinois 60051.

4, State specifically and with certainty the personal injuries and property damage, if any,
sustained by PAUL DULBERG as a result of said occurrence.

ANSWER: Defendant has no knowledge regarding the plaintiff’s personal injuries
and/or property damage claims.

7. State whether PAUL DULBERG was hospitalized or bad suffered any illness or petsonal
injury prior to or subsequent to the date of said occurrence, and if so, state the nature and date of
each such hospitalization, illness or personal injury. '

ANSWER: 1 do not know.

8. State whether PAUL DULBERG suffered any permanent scarring as a result of the
accident alleged in the complaint. If so, state the location of such scar, the width and length of
such scar or scars. (Pursuant to Supreme Court Rule 214, please attach any photos of any such
scar to your answers hereto.)

ANSWER: Ido not know.

9. State whether prior to the accident alleged in the complaint PAUL DULBERG suffered
any physical disability or impairment of any kind whatsoever. If’ so, state the nature of such.
physical disability or impairment and how PAUL DULBERG came to have such physical
disability or impairment.

ANSWER: 1do not know.

10.  State the location of the alleged occurrence, pinpointing such location in feet, inches and
direction from fixed Obj ects or boundaries at the scene of the occurrence.

AL
ANSWER: The accident occurred m&eﬂt/ of my parent’s home at 1016 W. Elder Avenue,

McHenry Illinois 60051.

11.  State with particularity the nature of the alleged defect, object substance or condition
which caused the alleged occurrence giving the exact dimensions and physical. description of
such including the size, shape, color, height, length and depth of such defect or object.

ANSWER: Chainsaw, EFCO, Model # MT3500, 2.38 Cubic Inch, 16” blade.

12.  State with particularity what PAUL DULBERG was domg at the time of the accident
alleged in the complaint.

ANSWER: He was helping me trim a tree by helding a branch.

13.  State with particularity what DAVID GAGNON was doing at the time of the accident
alleged in the complamt

ANSWER: I'was cutting through a branch with the chainsaw.
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14.  State with particularity the address for David Gagnon on June 28, 2011.
ANSWER: 39010 90™ Place, Genoa City Wisconsin 53128.

15.  State with particularity all the reasons why PAUL DULBERG was present on the
premises known commonly as 1016 W. Elder Avenue, City of McHenry, County of McHenty,
Tilinois on the date of the alleged occurrence.

ANSWER: 1 asked him to help me trim the tree at my parents’ home.

16.  State with particularity all the reasons why DAVID GAGNON was present on the
premises known commonly as 1016 W. Elder Avenue, City of McHenry, County of McHenry,
Illinois on the date of the alleged occurrence.

ANSWER: Iwas trimming a tree for my parents.

17.  State with particularity your basis for alleging that David Gagnon was wotking under the
supervision and control of Defendants Bill McGuire and Carolyn McGuire at the time of the
occutrence, as asserted in your answer to Plaintiff's Complainf,

ANSWER: N/A

18..  State with particularity your basis for alleging that Defendants Bill McGuire and Carolyn
McGuire instructed and/or advised David Gagnon in the use of a chain saw on or before the date
of the occurrence, as asserted in your answer to Plaintiff's Complaint.

ANSWER: N/A

19.  State with particularity your basis for alleging that David Gagnon was under the
supervision and conirol of Defendants Bill McGuire and Carolyn McGuire and working as their
apparent and actual agent on the date of and at the time of the occurrence, as asserted in your
answer to Plaintiff's Complaint. :

ANSWER: N/A

20.  State with particularity any and all defects associated with the chain saw you believe or
claim was involved in the occurrence alleged in Plaintiff's Complaint.

ANSWER: None.

21.  State whether any photographs or videos were taken of the scene of the occurrence or of
the persons, objects or premises involved, and if so, state the number of photographs or videos
taken, their subject matter and who now has custody of them.

ANSWER: No.

22.  Pursuant to Supreme Court Rule 213(f), furnish the identity and addresses of mmesses
who will testify at trial and the following information:
(@)  For each lay witness, identify the subjects on which the witness will testify.
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(b)' For each independent expert witness, identify the subjects on which the witness
will testify and the opinions the party expects to elicit. '
(c)  For each controlled expert witness, identify:
(i)  the subject matter on which the witness will testify;
. (ii)  the conclusions and opinions of the witness and the bases therefor;
(iii) the qualifications of the witness; and
(iv)  any reports prepared by the witness about .the case.

ANSWER:  David A. Gagnon, 39010 90™ Place, Genoa City Wisconsin 53128— This
witness is expected to testify to any dangerous or defective condition that he saw and/or was
aware of; his insurance policy and coverage; maintenance, repair and inspection of the chainsaw;
as to any dangerous or defective area on the premises. This witness is also expected to testify
regarding his observations of the plaintiff before, during and after the alleged occurrence; his
understanding as to the facts of the accident; his observations of the scene and he is expected to
testify as to any conversations which took place between the parties and witnesses. This witness
‘is also expected to testify consistent with any testimony he may have given and/or may give at a
discovery deposition. . '

Paul Dulberg, 4606 Hayden Ct, McHenry Ilinois 60050—This witness is expected to testify
to any dangerous. or defective condition that he saw and/or was aware of; his relationship to the
tenants of the building; his observations prior, during and after his alleged injury; the nature of
his injury, medical bills, medical records and recovery; his understanding of his injury and
recovery. This witness is also expected to testify to his understanding as to the facts of the
accident; his observations of the scene and he is expected to testify as to any conversations which
took place between the parties and witnesses. This witness is also expected to testify consistent
with any testimony he may have given and/or may give at a discovery deposition.

Carolyn McGuire, 1016 W. Elder Avenue, McHenry Hlinois 60051; William McGuire,
1016 W. Elder Avenue, McHenry Illinois 60051— These witnesses are expected to testify as to
their ownership of the property in question; their insurance policy and coverage; their knowledge
of the area, chainsaw and tree; maintenance, repair and inspection of the chainsaw; as to any

yiolations the premises; as to any dangerous or defective area on the premises. These witnesses
are also expected to testify regarding their observations of the plaintiff before, during and after
the alleged occurrence; their understan ing as to the facts of the accident; their observations of
the scene and they are expected to testify as to any conversations which took place between the
parties and witnesses. These witnesses are also expected to testify consistent with any testimony
they may have given and/or may give at a discovery deposition.
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Under penalties as provided by law pursuant to 735 ILCS 5/1-109 of the Code of Civil |
Procedure, the undersigned certifies that the statements set forth in this instrument are true and
correct, except as to matters therein stated to be on information and belief and as to such matters
the undersigned certifies as aforesaid that he/she verily believes the same to be true.

DAVID GAGNON 7
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. I HEREBY CERTIFY thaton | / St / S , & true and correct copy of the
foregoing Answers to Interrogatories were filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of McHenry

County and a copy of same was also mailed to:

- Hans A, Mast
. Law Offices of Thomas J. Popovich, P.C,
. 3416 WEIm St
McHenry IL 60050

Attorney for Plaintiff{s) Paul Dulberg
Cicero, France, Barch & Alexander PC

6323 East Riverside Blvd
Rockford, I, 61114

Attorney for Co-Defendants, Caroline and Bill MecGuire

4

PERRYA, ACCARDO

Fixm No.: 46878
E ADDRESS:

OISLEGAL@ALLSTATE.COM
rney Bar No.: 6228720

Attorney for Defendant(s):

David Gagnon
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FED
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE TWENTY-SECOND JUDICIAL eHYEEpseourty, Winds

MCcHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS
MR {3 2015
PAUL DULBERG, )
) iZ,. KATHERINEM.REEFE
Plaintiff, ) . Clerk of the Circuit Court
)
Vs, ) No. 12LA 178
)
DAVID GAGNON, Individually, andas )
Agent of CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL )
McGUIRE and CAROLINE McGUIRE ) —
and BILL McGUIRE, Individually, ) CQY
)
Defendants, )
NOTICE OF MOTION
TO: VIA FIRST CLASS MAIL: VIA CERTIFIED MAIL:
Perry Accardo Paul Dulberg
Law Office of Steven A. Lihosit 4606 Hayden Court
200 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 2550 McHenry, IL 60051

Chicago, IL. 60601-1092

On March 13, 2015 at 9:00 a.m., or as soon thereafter as counsel may be heard, I shall
appear before the Honorable Thomas A. Meyer or any judge sitting in his stead, in courtroom 201
in the Circuit Court of McHenry County in Woodstock, Illinois and shall then and there present
MOTION TO WITHDRAW AS COUNSEL, a copy of which is hereby served upon you

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE
I certify that I served this Notice by mailing to whom it is directed at approximately 5:00 p.m.

onMarch 5,2015 in McHenry, IL and further that the statefnents set forth in this Affidavit of Service
are true and correct.

Hans A. #ast, Attorney for Plaintiff

LAW OFFICES OF THOMAS J. POPOVICH, P.C.
3416 West Elm Street

McHenry, IL 60050

815-344-3797

Attorney ID No. 06208070

Exhibit

Witness: Hans Mast
Date:  6/25/20

Court Reporter: Barb Smith
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U.S. Postal Servicer
CERTIFRrcowWAlL. RECEIPT

u'q., (Domestic Mail Only; No Insurance Coverage Provided)
? For delivery information visit our website at www.usps.com,
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Total Po:
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PS Form 3800, August 2006
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) O
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE TWENTY-SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
McHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS

PAUL DULBERG,
Plaintiff,
vs. No. 12LA17 =0
Coun

DAVID GAGNON, Individually, and as
Agent of CAROLINE McGUIRE and BILL

McGUIRE and CAROLINE McGUIRE
and BILL McGUIRE, Individually,

NE . ReerE
C@Tﬂgﬁ@ Circuit Court

N N N N s S N N N N N N

Defendants,

MOTION TO WITHDRAW AS COUNSEL

NOW COME the LAW OFFICES OF THOMAS J. POPOVICH, P.C,, attorneys for the
Plaintiff, PAUL DULBERG, and hereby move to withdraw as counsel for the Plaintiff in this cause
pursuant to Supreme Court Rule 13. In support of said Motion, the attorneys hereby state as follows:

1. Communication between Plaintiff and Plaintiff’s counsel has broken down resulting
in an unworkable situation for both attorney and client.

2. By copy of this motion, Plaintiff is hereby advised that, to ensure notice of any further
action in this cause, she should retain new counsel or within 21 days of the hearing of this motion
and withdrawal of counsel, retain other counsel or file her own supplementary appearance with the

clerk of the circuit court, stating an address at which service of notices or other papers may be had

upon her.
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WHEREFORE, the LAW OFFICES OF THOMAS J. POPOVICH, P.C. respectfully requests
that this Court enter an Order granting the LAW OFFICES OF THOMAS J. POPOVICH, P.C. leave
to withdraw as counsel for the Plaintiff, PAUL DULBERG.

Respettfully submitted,

Hans

LAW OFFICES OF THOMAS J. POPOVICH
3416 West Elm Street

McHenry, IL 60050

(815) 344-3797

Attorney No. 06208070
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